
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, June 15, 2022

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

22-0774 Common Council Meeting Minutes of June 1, 2022

CC Minutes 6-1-22.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

22-0779 Library Board Appointments

 

Appointments Memo 6'15'2022.pdfAttachments:

22-0780 Alderperson Committee Replacement Appointment

 

Alder Committee Replacement Memo.pdfAttachments:

22-0781 City Assessor Recommendation 

 

City Assessor Recommendation to Council Memo.pdfAttachments:

22-0783 Proclamations

  - Make Music Day

  - Dump the Pump Day

 

Make Music Day Proclamation.pdf

Dump the Pump Day Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21324
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=66eb4a25-7042-482a-8663-2b3cde72b816.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21329
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5bb9cf5a-1673-4ea5-8c18-845cb485ae72.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21330
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=16461b92-5602-4314-b09d-71cca361d51d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21331
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=986db940-360f-4888-8666-cd16528085f5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21333
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cce8b5ab-e94b-4bfd-a21a-35c9be1b1882.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e1e45101-7052-4a40-b1fd-ef43ba7913d2.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0782 Presentation from the League of Wisconsin Municipalities

 

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

22-0603 Public Hearing for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment #2-22 Apostolic 

Truth Church from One and Two Family Residential and Multi-Family Land 

Use to Public Institutional Land Use

Public Hearing Notice Comp Plan Amend #2-22.pdfAttachments:

22-0604 Public Hearing for Rezoning #3-22 for Apostolic Truth Church from R-1A 

Single-Family District to P-I Public Institutional District

 

RZ #3_22 Notice of Public Hearing.pdfAttachments:

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

22-0723 Anticipated award for Unit Q-22 Pavement Marking Contract (Paint). Bids 

to be opened Monday, May 23, 2022.

 

Anticipated award for Unit Q-22 Pavement Marking Contract.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

5/23/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

approved as amended

Amended: Award Contract to Crowley Construction Corp. in an amount not to 

exceed $48,000 (5-0)

22-0754 Approve proposed parking changes on S. Driscoll Street (between 

Charles Street and the railroad tracks).  Follow-up to six month trial period.

 

Parking change on S. Driscoll St.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/6/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21332
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21153
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5417516b-c7a1-4d1f-8c14-2cb7675fa702.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21154
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8d1ec49a-8caa-4cf9-9f15-0892e1332596.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21273
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=01814980-1ddd-4517-b9b1-cc733e0fcdc9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21304
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a71d3731-17d0-47c3-a4d4-9a7e2cc86a1f.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0755 Possible 6-Month trial for parking changes on Pacific Street (Drew Street 

to Lawe Street).

 

Parking change on Pacific St..pdf

Emails -Pacific St-Drew St to Lawe St.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

6/6/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

6/6/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for denial

Recommendation for approval motion failed.

Recommendation for denial passed.

22-0756 Approve proposed ordinance changes related to the A-22 Appleton Street 

Reconstruction Project.

 

A-22 Appleton Street Project.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/6/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

22-0679 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Dairyland 

Brew Pub LLC, Michele Preston, Agent, located at 1216 E Wisconsin Ave, 

contingent upon approval from the Finance and Health departments.  

Dairyland Brew Pub LLC.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0727 "Class A" Liquor License application for Depu LLC d/b/a Northland Mobil, 

Chiranjibi Lamichhane, Agent, located at 105 W Northland Ave.

Northland Mobil.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0728 "Class A" Liquor License application for BSS Corporation d/b/a Richmond 

Mobil, Buddi Subedi, Agent, located at 3401 N Richmond St.

Richmond Mobil.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21305
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bebad55d-41a4-406e-89ba-1d82a16900c7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a866d29-f8cc-4ce4-890f-2ba49bc05e81.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21306
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c6e5a459-d11f-42ac-a120-ac489c3a4271.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21229
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c9fb2b06-3d40-429a-96ea-ff7e82d83405.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21277
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b099653b-c59b-4606-a41c-7cf36f0ae4f4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21278
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a3956bf2-dccf-47f6-a286-57a832a42653.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0729 "Class A" Liquor License application for Jaliyan Gas LLC d/b/a Wisconsin 

Avenue Pantry, Nilesh M Patel, Agent, located at 111 W Wisconsin Ave.

Wisconsin Avenue Pantry.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0730 "Class A" Liquor License application for Sai Krupa LLC d/b/a Richmond 

St Citgo, Nilesh Patel, Agent, located at 1601 N Richmond St.

Richmond St Citgo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0737 Salvage Dealer License renewal application for Mach IV Motors LLC, Kara 

Tullberg, Applicant, located at 600 E Hancock St, contingent upon approval 

from the Inspections department.

Mach IV Motors S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0763 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Change of Agent application 

for Lawrence University d/b/a Viking Room, Brittany M. Bell, New Agent, 

located at 615 E College Ave.

Brittany M Bell S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0767 Additional 2022-2023 Mechanical Amusement Device License renewals, 

contingent upon approval from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 

2022.

Additional Amusement Device renewals 2022-23.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0768 Additional 2022-2023 Cigarette and Tobacco Products License renewals.

Additional Cigarette renewals 2022-23.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21279
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3217207-6ddb-4b4b-b602-077e84250943.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21280
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4dcdef3f-098b-4881-a07a-a5d441e4456d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21287
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c8859139-4eb7-4b76-ab54-ba1a2e4d14a9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21313
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8af10f67-6ae4-477d-9c93-50fcb9201fd4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21317
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=909799ec-e222-40a9-b914-84dbf0f2afba.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21318
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7ed1132a-1681-4255-99da-d0858b4052a5.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0770 Additional 2022-2023 Alcohol License Renewal applications, contingent 

upon approvals from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 2022.

2022-23 Alcohol License Renewals-4th set.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

22-0613 Request to approve Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use 

Map Amendment #2-22 for the subject parcel located on N. French Road, 

bordered by E. Glory Lane, N. Providence Avenue, and E. Ashbury Drive 

(Tax Id #31-1-7400-00) from future One and Two-Family Residential land 

use designation and Multi-Family land use designation to Public 

Institutional land use designation as shown on the attached map and 

approve the attached Resolution

StaffReport_ApostolicChurch_CompPlan+Rezoning_For05-11-22.pdf

Paula Meyer Email.pdf

Neighborhood Brochure From Apostolic Truth Church.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

5/11/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on June 15, 2022.

22-0615 Request to approve Rezoning #3-22 for the subject parcel located on N. 

French Road, bordered by E. Glory Lane, N. Providence Avenue, and E. 

Ashbury Drive (Tax Id #31-1-7400-00), including the adjacent one-half (1/2) 

right-of-way, as shown on the attached maps, from R-1A Single-Family 

District to P-I Public Institutional District

StaffReport_ApostolicChurch_CompPlan+Rezoning_For05-11-22.pdf

Paula Meyer Email.pdf

Neighborhood Brochure From Apostolic Truth Church.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

5/11/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on June 15, 2022.

22-0749 Request to approve Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash use located 

at 3200 E. Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00), as shown on the 

attached materials and per attached plan of operation, to run with the land 

subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached 

Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for approval)

StaffReport_Peak Car Wash_SUP_For06-08-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21320
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0b713ffa-5697-4861-8276-35c16792ca7f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21163
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f802d263-d85d-475f-ade0-ffb009b4575c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f82907ba-e4e4-4142-9569-00196a8e5b45.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b6a68b0d-2d11-4d8f-b78e-fe41179d1418.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21165
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92aab26c-059e-4a61-b4a3-7fb278949de5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=792bb3c6-9a7c-416b-98e2-9115fe256384.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=078a44b7-f8c2-4e56-8f59-1d5e59db5ef3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21299
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84ead176-0c55-447c-9b41-3818a0bbaca0.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

22-0371 Counter the Offer to Purchase from River Valley One, LLC and/or assigns 

to purchase Lot 1 of CSM 3549 in Southpoint Commerce Park (Tax Id 

#31-9-5712-40), consisting of approximately 7.22 acres

River Valley One Offer to Purchase Memo to CEDC 6-8-22.pdf

Offer to Purchase 9-5712-40 SPCP River Valley One LLC.pdf

SPCP Deed Restrictions.pdf

Subject_Parcel_6_6_2022.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

22-0741 Request to waive the City's repurchase rights for Tax Id #31-1-6510-18, 

Lot 18 in the Northeast Business Park Plat No. 2, the northeast corner of 

Enterprise Avenue and Intertech Court, allowing the transfer from Single 

Month LLC and/or assigns to Joe Neilitz and/or assigns; this waiver is not 

transferable, survivable, or assignable and the City's repurchase rights 

remain on the property

Memo_Romenesko Waive Repurchase Request_NEBP #1-6510-18_6-8-22.pdf

Variance Request Email_Romenesko Development_3-2-22.pdf

Offer to Purchase Lot 18 NEBP_Joe Neilitz.pdf

Covenants and Restrictions_NEBP No. 2.pdf

Subject Parcel_1-6510-18.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

22-0743 Request to approve the 2021 Consolidated Annual Performance and 

Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Program

CAPER memo to CEDC 6-8-22.pdf

2021 CDBG CAPER Draft for Public Comment.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

6/8/22 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20921
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=64bbc985-1140-407d-a59c-0b3f5acf6a8d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=83a64189-b481-4579-80ec-5d9ed432f117.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ea5724ab-fa87-4b77-ac9b-0e5bab818ce9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=186d1c28-5f34-47c4-a0e1-7b4c622eb943.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21291
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=33b30d18-bbb0-467a-ac13-4eee0fed8ee0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=544b1feb-cb0c-4c80-94fe-52b2b51270ff.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7d3d037d-ed40-46af-a0a5-8c0e3a185d78.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=89fac6dc-9e99-411c-aab8-316c005d42fe.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a73e669c-aae8-4799-ae89-bcecaa50195b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21293
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f0140aa3-908e-45ea-873a-76c974734bee.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=89e39b16-b4bb-45fb-87ce-924db2e30b8d.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0736 Award 2022 AWWTP Preliminary Heat Exchanger and Blended Sludge 

Piping Replacement Project Engineering Services Amendment #1 

increasing the McMahon total contract amount by $3,800 from $26,300 to 

$30,100 and increase contingency from $2,630 to $4,000 for a Project 

Total not to exceed $34,100.

 

Contract Amend #1_McMahon_2022 AWWTP Prelim HEX-Blended Sludge Piping.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/7/22 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

22-0738 Amend 2022A Stormwater Management Plan Review Contract with Brown 

and Caldwell by an increase of $20,000 for a total contract amount not to 

exceed $67,500.

 

2022A SWM Plan Review BC Amendment Memo Util Cmte.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/7/22 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21286
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=131958d2-f36d-4e4b-acb9-851d1c204ada.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21288
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6e8297f4-08bd-4eb1-806f-8130d1ed2fd8.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0752 Request Approval of the Electronic Compliance Maintenance Annual 

Report (eCMAR) for 2021 and Request the following Resolution be 

presented to the Common Council for approval:

Whereas, the City of Appleton manages, operates, and maintains a sewer 

collection system and wastewater treatment plant; and

Whereas, treatment efforts produce a liquid effluent and a biosolids that 

are returned to the environment; and

Whereas, the State of Wisconsin evaluates wastewater utilities throughout 

the State of Wisconsin through an electronic Compliance Maintenance 

Annual Report (eCMAR); and 

Whereas, Appleton received the score of 3.73 GPA; and

Whereas, the State of Wisconsin requests the Common Council pass a 

resolution accepting the eCMAR report;

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council that the City of Appleton:

Article 1. Continue supporting treatment and maintenance programs at the 

utility

Article 2. Continue planning efforts that will address and promote long term 

performance results at the facility.

 

2021 eCMAR Validated.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

6/7/22 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

Page 8 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21302
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f199155-b605-45bb-9342-ff570eb90bde.pdf


June 15, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0777 Ordinances #43-22 and #44-22

 

Ordinances to Council 6-15-22.pdfAttachments:

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 9 City of Appleton Printed on 6/10/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21327
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=54e44e2e-926e-490c-9c46-61fdd363279c.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, June 1, 2022

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:17 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Wolff.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Christopher Croatt, 

Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 15 - 

Alderperson Sheri HartzheimExcused: 1 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

22-0746 Common Council Meeting Minutes of May 18, 2022

CC Minutes 5-18-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Van Zeeland, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21296
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=497d48cf-fe05-4247-801c-f2f7cec512b0.pdf


June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

22-0745 Proclamations:

  - Pride Month

  - CPR & AED Awareness Week

  - Gun Violence Awareness Day

  - Juneteenth Celebration

  - Refugee Day

 

Pride Month Proclamation.pdf

CPR AED Awareness Week Proclamation.pdf

Gun Violence Awareness Day Proclamation.pdf

Juneteenth Celebration Day Proclamation.pdf

Refugee Day Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

22-0537 Resolution #6-R-22 "Soldier Square Resolution"

 

Resolution #6-R-22.pdf

Memo #6-R-22.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Schultz moved, seconded by Alderperson Del Toro, that the 

Resolution be amended to remove the portion requesting an RFP process to 

begin the design phase from the Be It Further Resolved statement of the 

Resolution. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Israel 

Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones and Alderperson Nate Wolff

10 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

4 - 

Excused: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21295
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=40a43201-664a-4223-8bf1-7b84965c3b9b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a753321b-a870-4411-ab17-cee5cdcc7e18.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=720c1763-0127-48ac-ace9-7c1a8e9a03b7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ec1490c-79b0-4a6e-afd5-45ba37653e4e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8c48c778-43e4-4c62-83f9-1c1fb0b1513c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21087
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d2d660fb-a303-4489-8402-5ace126c9e5a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fec97fde-69e7-4151-a6ea-5b550ed4726f.pdf


June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Del Toro, that the 

Resolution be approved as amended. (A Notwithstanding vote was taken). Roll 

Call. Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones and 

Alderperson Nate Wolff

6 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

8 - 

Excused: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Alfheim moved, Alderperson Del Toro seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

22-0721 Approve modifications to Sidewalk Installation Policy.

 

Sidewalk Installation Policy.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21271
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0c202018-2ab1-44bc-8bf0-ec36d4f8563f.pdf


June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0609 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Temporary Premise 

Amendment for DCMX LLC d/b/a Gingerootz, Mylee Xiong, Agent, 

located at 2920 N Ballard Rd, on June 6, 2022, contingent upon 

approvals from the Community Development, Health, Inspections and 

Police departments.

Gingerootz Asian Grille.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0645 Pet Store License renewal application for Fish Cave LLC, Ton Vang, 

applicant, located at 2110 S Memorial Dr, contingent upon approval from 

the Inspections department.

Fish Cave LLC S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0655 Salvage Dealer License renewal application for Golper Supply Co. Inc, 

David Golper, applicant, located at 1810 W Edgewood Dr, Appleton WI 

54913. 

Golper Supply Co Inc S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0658 2022-2023 Mechanical Amusement Device License renewals, contingent 

upon approvals from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 2022.

Amusement Device renewals 2022-23.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0663 2022-2023 Cigarette and Tobacco Products License renewals.

Cigarette renewals 2022-23.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0690 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License Change of Agent 

application for Home Run Pizza WI LLC d/b/a Home Run Pizza, Charles 

E Nelson III, New Agent, located at 1216 W Wisconsin Ave.

Charles E Nelson III S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21159
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cd5dd806-32c0-4ffc-8b6c-cbe0153b6918.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21195
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=595c2f80-d0ef-4a66-8d84-c542510cbff5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21205
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=16a0fd4b-d13a-49c6-b55d-b0dd7d274d19.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21208
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e7ecea1b-d82f-4f4e-9c54-4ea2cf6e8bd4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21213
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1bea7773-9a2f-4c6a-ae0c-64f1901a023d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21240
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8ca43ea5-3b6b-4b20-ae4a-56c0a16f13c8.pdf


June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0709 Commercial Quadricycle Renewal License Application for Social Station, 

LLC, Chris Burns, W6068 Nolan Dr, Appleton, WI 54915

 

The Social Station.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0719 2022-2023 Additional Alcohol License Renewal applications, contingent 

upon approval from all departments by 12:00 p.m. on June 30, 2022. 

2022-23 Alcohol License Renewals-3rd set.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

22-0740 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendment:

Valley Transit

Federal Grant +$143,480

Local Match +$  35,870

Buildings +$179,350

to fund the cost to conduct a site assessment and create a master plan 

for the Transit Center facility in accordance with Federal Transit 

Administration Guidelines

 

Budet Amendment Request for TC Master Plan.pdf

2022 Transit Center Master Plan Professional Services.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0711 Request to approve the 2023 Special Assessment Policy

 

2023 Assessment Policy.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21259
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=954425c0-bbcd-4b39-a218-fad182424306.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21269
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eef12791-e3e2-479a-b575-6a86a3ba25cc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21290
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6b4d4e23-32aa-4fb4-a12d-cc5155538cf7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3e7c58c3-899c-4359-a66a-7a291144e283.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21261
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5bc40900-6e1f-4b33-b862-63ce3d4b1b4b.pdf


June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0712 Request to award Unit H-21 Redundant Raw Water Line to PTS 

Contractors, Inc in the amount of $4,875,000 with a 10.3% contingency of 

$500,000 for a project total not to exceed $5,375,000

 

Award of Contract Unit H-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0713 Request to approve Contract Amendment/Change Order No. 3 to 

contract 133-21, Unit U-21 Apple Creek Ct & Plamann Park S&W 

Construction for additional quantities of tree removal and gravel backfill to 

facilitate sewer construction in the amount of $64,293 resulting in no 

change to contract contingency. Overall contract increases from 

$3,999,181 to $4,063,474

 

Unit U-21 Change Order No. 3.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

22-0692 Request to approve the REVISED 2022-2023PY Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding as specified in the attached 

community partner allocation recommendations

Alloc Recs Memo to CEDC Final Award 05-25-22.pdf

Reallocation of 2020 AHA Funds to RTFV Memo to CEDC 2-9-22.pdf

2022 CDBG Community Partner Recommendations-FINAL.pdf

2022 CDBG Simple Summary Recommendations-FINAL.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

22-0726 Request to approve over-hire for City Assessor Position for Community 

and Economic Development Department. 

 

City Assessor Overhire Request May 2022.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21262
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9d588dcb-9f3a-424c-a44d-d89f7fa8a317.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21263
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b1028ea5-a3d9-4011-8ca8-7a65dc259b93.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21242
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=89a97152-1d8d-441b-b023-5893e41ac8b0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=17b4a3b0-57c5-4f3c-9ff7-8d9c3b075eb2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1d17be10-59b5-4c87-b4ed-90ce79401d40.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=04ec4665-d1a7-490c-b76d-9dd86619f51b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21276
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02302628-711c-4a1a-88e8-f61306db5818.pdf


June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0702 Request to approve over-hire for Payroll Coordinator for the Finance 

Department. 

 

Payroll Coordinator - Over-Hire Request.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0705 Request to approve over-hire for Purchasing Manager for the Finance 

Department. 

 

Purchasing Manager - Over-Hire Request.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

22-0695 Approval of a Contract for Professional Services for Transit Center 

Needs Assessment and Master Plan

2022 Transit Center Master Plan Professional Services memo to 

FCTC.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0696 Approval of Title VI Program Update

Valley Transit Title VI Program 2022_draft.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

22-0688 #5-R-22 Water Main Resolution

#5-R-22 Water Main Resolution.pdf

Memo - Resolution #5-R-22 Director Vandehey.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Siebers, that the 

Resolution be amended to request $35.1 million in funding for the 

infrastructure repairs from the State budget surplus. Roll Call. Motion carried 

by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21252
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4cd9cd23-2a67-4e5d-a36b-c12aada23f6b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21255
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0b9a1358-a2bb-4922-8055-7247b9737b7a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21245
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=179c57ea-6c61-4be2-bf80-d34d38de2e69.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21246
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3836d259-e1a8-4db6-953f-93bbc29a4656.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21238
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6b336cae-2fab-4426-88e6-f50cee91900a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c9db84f6-494f-4dc8-be5c-f0ee1432bc7b.pdf


June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Nay: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Chad Doran2 - 

Excused: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Meltzer moved, seconded by Alderperson Van Zeeland, that the 

Resolution be approved as amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and Alderperson Christopher Croatt

12 - 

Nay: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Chad Doran2 - 

Excused: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Alfheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Del Toro, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 8:30 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 8City of Appleton



June 1, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 9City of Appleton















CITY OF APPLETON 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

PROPOSED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Public Hearing to be held before the Appleton Common Council on 
Wednesday, June 15, 2022, at 7:00 P.M. in Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton 
Street, or as soon thereafter as can be heard, for the purpose of considering a Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use Map Amendment request. 
 

Pursuant to Chapter 12: Implementation of the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-
2030, to consider a request by Apostolic Truth Church, owner, and Sam Al-Saadi, applicant, for 
parcel #31-1-7400-00 located on N. French Road, bordered by E. Glory Lane, N. Providence 
Avenue, and E. Ashbury Drive from future One and Two-Family Residential land use and Multi-
Family land use to future Public Institutional land use 
 

A copy of the proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map is available in the 
Appleton Community and Economic Development Department or the Office of the City Clerk from 8:00 a.m. 
until 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
 
All persons interested are invited to express your views or concerns regarding the above-described request.  
The Common Council meeting is open to the public. Feedback can also be shared with Common Council 
members via written letter, email, or phone call. Alternatively, you can also contact the Mayor’s Office at 
mayor@appleton.org and your comments will be forwarded to the Common Council.  
 
Any questions regarding this matter should be directed to Jessica Titel, Principal Planner, in the 
Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6476 or by email at 
jessica.titel@appleton.org. 
 
KAMI LYNCH  
CITY CLERK 
 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 
 
RUN: May 16, 2022 

mailto:mayor@appleton.org
mailto:jessica.titel@appleton.org


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
#3-22 

RE: Proposed Zone Change 
 

A public hearing will be held in the Council Chambers, City Hall, Appleton, Wisconsin, on June 
15, 2022, at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, to consider the following proposed 
zone change: 

 
Rezoning #3-22: A rezoning request has been initiated by Apostolic Truth Church, owner, and Sam 
Al-Saadi, applicant, in the matter of amending Chapter Twenty-three (Zoning Ordinance) of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Appleton for the following described real estate.  The owner requests 
to rezone parcel #31-1-7400-00 located on N. French Road, bordered by E. Glory Lane, N. 
Providence Avenue, and E. Ashbury Drive, including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way, from 
R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public institutional District 
 
Legal Description:  SEC7 T21N R18E PRT N1/2 SE NE COM E1/4 COR SEC 7 N1306.42FT 
W48.98FT TO POB TH W670.84FT S648.44FT E674.75FT N645.19FT TO POB AND LOT 1 
OF CSM 2720 LE SS DOC 1676937 & LESS DOC 1680547, INCLUDING THE ADJACENT 
ONE HALF (½) RIGHT OF WAY, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN. 
 
May 19, 2022 
 
RUN: May 24, 2022    KAMI LYNCH 
 May 31, 2022     City Clerk 























100.00

500.00

60.00
660.00











300.00

60.00
360.00













WI 07/2020











05/17/2022









300.00

60.00
360.00











05 25 22

3662-2











ADDITIONAL 2022-2023 RENEWALS 

        

CLASS “A” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE & “CLASS A” LIQUOR LICENSE 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Dolgencorp LLC   Dollar General  #6535          1320 W Wisconsin Ave Unit A 

Aaron Dalton, Agent, 1921 N Elinor St Appleton WI 54914 

 

Dolgencorp LLC   Dollar General  #21851  1010 W College Ave 

Aaron Dalton, Agent, 1921 N Elinor St Appleton WI 54914  

 

University Rx LLC   RxLink University Pharmacy  133 E College Ave 

Jude Jean-Pierre, Agent, 3916 N Millwood Dr Appleton WI 54911 

 

CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE LICENSE 

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Fox Valley Athetics LLC                        1620 E Witzke Blvd-Jones Bldg 

L. Eric Schaefer, Agent, 1139 Honey Creek Cir, Oshkosh WI 54904 

 

Fronteras, LLC   Fronteras Restaurant   2311 W College Ave 

Eric Mosqueda Lopez, Agent, 1009 E Kramer Ln Appleton WI  54915 

 

Hmong Express LLC   Hmong Express   1216 N Division St 

Ka Ying Thao, Agent, 319 N Bennett St Appleton WI 54914 

 

Lilac Enterprises LLC   May’s Kitchen            1804 S Lawe St Ste 204 

May Vang, Agent, 1226 Appleton St Menasha WI 54952 

 

Taco House LLC   Taco House    135 E Wisconsin Ave 

Roberto Martinez, Agent, 301 E Greenfield St Appleton WI 54911 

 

United Sports Association for Youth, Inc     3300 E Evergreen Dr 

Katherine E Wood, Agent, 610 Harold Way Appleton WI 54915 
 

CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE LICENSE 

AND “CLASS C” WINE LICENSE 

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Dog Lover Dawn Designs LLC    Board & Brush Creative Studio  109 N Durkee St  

Dawn C Smith, Agent, W3970 Devine Ln Appleton WI 54913 

 

 

 

 

 



CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE & “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE  

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Dairyland Brewing Co LLC  Dairyland Brew Pub             1216 E Wisconsin Ave 

Dorri M. Schmidt, Agent, 1225 E Amelia St Appleton WI 54911 

 

El Sabor LLC    El Sabor    2190 S Memorial Dr 

Luis Santiago, Agent, W5749 Jochmann Dr Appleton WI 54915 

 

WHW Gastropub LLC  Meade Street Bistro   2729 N Meade St 

Daniel J. Hoff Sr., Agent, 225 E Wayfarer Ln Appleton WI 54913 

 

Mill City Public House LLC  Mill City Public House  1103 W College Ave 

Russell T Leary, Agent, 3608 E Lexington Dr Appleton WI 54915 

 

OM Investments, LLC  Sai Ram Indian Cuisine  253 W Northland Ave 

Sivakumar Rajarathinam, Agent, 1237 Symphony Blvd Neenah WI 54956 

 

Ka Lee & Peng Xiong   Shadows Food & Spirit  211 S Walter Ave 

948 Ida St, Menasha WI 54952 

 

Lawrence University of Wisconsin Viking Room    615 E College Ave 

Jonathan E Meyer, Agent, 304 W North Ave Little Chute WI 54140  

 

CLASS “B” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE & RESERVE “CLASS B” LIQUOR 

LICENSE  

 

NAME    TRADE NAME   ADDRESS 

Thai Ginger Bistro LLC  Thai Ginger Bistro  1619 W Wisconsin Ave Ste F 

Bounpheng Luangpraseuth, Agent, 2903 N Rankin St Apt 1 Appleton WI 54911 



 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner/Applicant:  Apostolic Truth Church c/o Sam Al-Saadi 

 

Lot/Parcel:  N. French Road (Tax Id #31-1-7400-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting to amend the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

Future Land Use Map from future One and Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family designations to 

future Public Institutional designation for the subject parcel.  In conjunction with this request, the 

applicant is also proposing to rezone the subject parcel from R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public 

Institutional District.  The requests are being made to accommodate construction of a place of worship. 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

The subject area was purchased by the church in 1993 with the intent of using the property for its future 

place of worship.  The rezoning and comprehensive plan amendment would provide a future land use 

designation that is consistent with the proposed rezoning request and future use of the property.   

 

On March 15, 2017, the Common Council approved/adopted the 5-year update to the Comprehensive 

Plan 2010-2030 and Future Land Use Map.  This plan establishes a vision for future land use, physical 

development, and quality of life in the City and provides a comprehensive set of goals, policies, and 

initiatives to achieve that vision.  The Comprehensive Plan document and the accompanying Future Land 

Use Map also serve as a guide for future growth and development in the City.  Periodically, development 

proposals or changing circumstances within the City may trigger consideration of an amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  That is the case for this request. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Procedural Findings: When a Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment and 

Rezoning application are required for the same development project, the respective staff reports are 

consolidated together as one.  

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The subject site is currently undeveloped land.  The parcel is approximately 

15.37 acres in size.  The property has frontage along East Glory Lane, North Providence Avenue and East 

Ashbury Drive.  The City’s Arterial/Collector Plan classifies East Ashbury Drive and North Providence 

Drive as Collector Streets and East Glory Lane as a Local Street. 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Meeting Date:  May 11, 2022 

Common Council Public Hearing Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022 (Public 

Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning) 

Items:  City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use 

Map Amendment #2-22 and Rezoning #3-22 

Case Managers:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 2 
 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification, Future Land Use Designation, and Current Land Uses:  

 

North:  Zoning – R-1A & R-1B Single-Family District 

 Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – Single-Family Residential 

 

South:  Zoning – R-2 Two -Family District & PD/R-3 Planned Development Multi-Family District 

 Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family Residential 

 

East:  Zoning – NC Nature Conservancy District 

 Future Land Use Designation – Multi-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – City of Appleton owned drainage ditch. 

 

West:  Zoning – R-1A Single-Family District 

 Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – Single-Family Residential 

 

Proposed Future Land Use Designation:  Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are sometimes 

triggered by technical corrections to omissions or errors, specific development proposals, or changing 

circumstances in the City.  In this case, a specific development proposal for the area is necessitating the 

change to Public/Institutional designation.   

 

The Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 does not identify specific locations for future public/institutional 

uses.  However, Chapter 10 states that while public or institutional uses may be located on land 

designated for any use, certain criteria should guide site selection.  At a minimum, the City should 

consider: 

• Compatibility with existing or planned land uses in the area.  The proposed use of the property as 

a place of worship is consistent with the Public/Institutional Future Land Use designation. 

• Traffic or other impacts and the need for utilities.  The subject area is served by existing 

infrastructure, and the proposed Public/Institutional designation should not have a significant 

impact on traffic. 

• Scale of the proposed use (buildings, etc.) in comparison to existing or planned neighboring uses.  

The Future Land Use Map Amendment request is being made to accommodate a potential future 

place of worship.  Plans have not been provided at this point; however, any development will need 

to adhere to zoning code requirements in regards to setbacks, lot coverage and landscape 

buffering.   

• Whether the proposed location may be better suited to other uses (such as commercial or 

employment-related) that may be needed to serve the neighborhood or provide a proportionally 

greater benefit to the community as a whole.  The Future Land Use Map Amendment request is 

being made to serve the needs of a place of worship that will serve the surrounding neighborhood 

and community, Apostolic Truth Church. 

 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Goals and Objectives:  The Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 and 

Future Land Use Map are intended to guide City growth and development in an organized, efficient 

manner.  The Plan addresses a range of topics related to land use, housing and neighborhoods, economic 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 3 
 

development, transportation, utilities and community facilities, and more.  Evaluating the proposed 

amendment for consistency with relevant goals, objectives, and policies is necessary in determining if 

changes to the Future Land Use Map are appropriate.  The proposed amendment appears to be consistent 

with the following excerpts from the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use:  

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

Policy 10.1.1  Adopt, and as necessary, amend the Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

Proposed Zoning Classification:  The P-I Public Institutional District is intended to provide for public 

and institutional uses and buildings, utilized by the community, and to provide open space standards 

where necessary for the protection of adjacent residential properties.  The development standards for the 

P-I District are listed below: 

 

1) Minimum lot area. None. 

2) Maximum lot coverage. Seventy percent (70%). 

3) Minimum lot width. None. 

4) Minimum front yard. Twenty (20) feet plus an additional one (1) foot for each two (2) feet that the 

building or structure exceeds thirty-five (35) feet in height. 

5) Minimum rear yard. Twenty (20) feet plus an additional one (1) foot for each two (2) feet that the 

building or structure exceeds thirty-five (35) feet in height. 

6) Minimum side yard. Twenty (20) feet plus an additional one (1) foot for each two (2) feet that the 

building or structure exceeds thirty-five (35) feet in height. 

7) Maximum building height. Sixty (60) feet. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  A rezoning is often triggered by development proposals or 

changing circumstances in the City.  In this case, the request is being made to accommodate construction 

of a future place of worship for Apostolic Truth Church.  A place of worship, including its accessory uses, 

are permitted uses in the P-I Public Institutional District.  Any future development would need to conform 

to the P-I District zoning regulations listed above and other sections of the Zoning Ordinance.  Ultimately, 

Site Plan review and approval would be required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code, prior 

to the issuance of a building permit by the Inspections Division. 

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  Related excerpts are listed below. 

 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 4 
 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  If Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 is approved, to identify this area for 

future public/institutional uses, the rezoning request will be in conformance with the 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development. 

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  The subject area is served by existing infrastructure, and 

the transportation network should be able to accommodate the proposed rezoning. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  The proposed rezoning will allow 

for the construction of a place of worship.  Proposed setbacks and parking lot landscape 

buffers will be reviewed in accordance with the Zoning Code requirements at the time of Site 

Plan review.  Therefore, the proposed rezoning request is unlikely to create adverse impacts in 

the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Review Criteria:  Based upon the above analysis, it would appear the criteria established by Section 23-

65(d)(3) Zoning Amendments has been satisfied, provided Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

Amendment #2-22 is approved. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  These items were discussed at the February 1, 2022 

Technical Review Group meeting.  No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Based upon the above analysis, staff recommends the proposed City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 

2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 for the property located on N. French Road (Tax Id. 

#31-1-7400-00) from the One and Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family designations to the 

Public/Institutional designation and resolution, BE APPROVED; and  

 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 5 
 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for zoning map amendments as required by Section 23-

65(d)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, that Rezoning Application #3-22 to rezone the subject parcel located 

on N. French Road (Tax Id. #31-1-7400-00) from R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public Institutional 

District, including to the centerline of the adjacent right-of-way and as shown on the attached map, BE 

APPROVED.  
 

NOTE:  If approved, Rezoning #3-22 will be reported out at the same Common Council meeting as the 

proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment #2-22 to accurately reflect the change in future land use from  

One and Two-Family Residential  and Multi-Family Residential designations to the Public/Institutional 

designation. 



RESOLUTION 

CITY OF APPLETON 

 

ADOPTION OF THE RECOMMENDED AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AS PREPARED BY THE CITY OF APPLETON PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Appleton pursuant to Section 62.23 of 

the Wisconsin Statutes, has established a City Plan Commission; and  

 

 WHEREAS, on March 3, 2010, the Common Council adopted the City of Appleton 

Comprehensive Plan to promote public health, safety and welfare of the City by effectively 

guiding long-range growth and development within the city and its statutory extraterritorial 

planning jurisdiction; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, of 

the Comprehensive Plan was created in the City of Appleton Code of Ordinances to provide 

procedures and criteria for amending and updating the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public were invited to make comments at a meeting held on 

May 11, 2022, by the City Plan Commission, wherein the following Comprehensive Plan 

amendment (Amendment #2-22) herein adopted were reviewed and commented upon by 

members of the public; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed the recommended 

amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map at a meeting held on May 11, 2022 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the following 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments, found these amendments to meet the criteria outlined in 

Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, warranting inclusion in 

this resolution 

 

1. Having been filed with the City Clerk by the City of Appleton Community and 

Economic Development Department requesting a Comprehensive Plan Future Land 

Use Map Amendment to change future land use designations for specified property 

(Tax Id. #31-1-7400-00) on the Future Land Use Map from (One and Two-Family 

Residential Use and Multi-Family Residential Use) to (Public/Institutional Use). 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public, adjacent and nearby local governmental units will 

be given a 30-day review and comment period prior to the public hearing, which will be 

conducted by the Common Council for the Comprehensive Plan proposed amendment; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Common Council will decide whether to 

adopt by ordinance the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan; and 

 



 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan may be used as the basis for, among other things, 

updating the zoning ordinance, accomplishing extra-territorial zoning and as a guide for 

approving or disapproving actions affecting growth and development within the jurisdiction of 

the City of Appleton; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this Comprehensive Plan may from time to time be amended, extended, or 

added to in greater detail; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Appleton Plan Commission 

that the recommended Comprehensive Plan amendments are hereby adopted as a part of the City 

of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 pursuant to §66.1001(4), Wis. Stats. and that the 

Plan Commission recommends said Comprehensive Plan amendments to the City of Appleton 

Common Council for adoption by ordinance, after a 30-day public review and comment period 

and public hearing. 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

   

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 



E GLORY LA

E ASHBURY DR

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

CANVASBACK CIR

Apostolic Truth Church
Future Land Use Map Amendment

One and Two Family Residential and Multi-Family to Public Institutional

0 200 400
Feet

Subject Area
Current

City Plan Commission
5-11-2022

E GLORY LA

E ASHBURY DR

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

CANVASBACK CIR

Subject Area
Proposed

±

Legend
MULTIFAMILY
Public Institutional

One and Two-Family Residential



1-6402-1

1-6
40

2-2

1-6402

1-7509-5

1-7509-18

1-7507-2

1-7507-3

1-7509-20

1-7509-23

1-7511-80

1-7511-81

1-7509-17

1-7509-6

1-7
25

0-1
4

1-7
25

0-1
2

1-7510-89

1-7510-90

1-7510-92

1-7510-93

1-6
50

7-3
8

1-6
50

7-3
7

1-7507-4

1-7509-16

1-7510-36

1-7510-38

1-7510-1

1-6507-4

1-6507-3

1-7
41

1-1
4

1-7411-28

1-7411-27

1-7411-26

1-7411-25

1-7510-33

1-7510-35

1-7510-86

1-7510-87

1-7510-88

1-7510-94

1-7510-95

1-7
30

0-4
1

1-7
30

0-4
2

1-7
30

0-4
3

1-7
30

0-4
4

1-6507-2

1-6507-1

1-6506-99

0-7412-3

0-7412-2

0-7412-1

0-7412-4

0-7
41

2-5

1-6505-1

1-7507-1

1-6
50

7-1
3

1-6
50

7-1
2

1-6
50

7-1
1

1-6507-10

1-6507-9

1-6507-8

1-6507-7

1-6507-6

1-6507-5

1-6506-98

1-6506-97

1-6506-96

1-6506-95

1-6
506

-66

1-6
506

-67

1-6
506

-68

1-6
50

7-3
9

1-6
50

6-8
3

1-6
50

6-8
4

1-6506-94

1-6506-93

1-6506-91

1-6506-90

1-7412

1-7411-3

1-7411-4

1-7411-5

1-7411-6

1-7411-7

1-7411-8

1-7411-9
1-7411-10

1-7411-11

1-7411-12

1-7
41

1-1
3

1-7411-24

1-7411-23

1-7411-22

1-7411-21

1-7411-20

1-7411-19

1-7411-18

1-7411-17

1-7
41

1-1
6

1-7
41

1-1
5

1-7411-29

1-7411-30

1-7411-31

1-7411-32

1-7411-34

1-7411-35

1-7411-36

1-7411-37

1-7411-38

1-7411-39

1-7411-40

1-7506

1-7507

1-7505

1-7504

1-7
30

0-3
0

1-7
30

0-2
9

1-7
30

0-2
8

1-7400

1-7411-33

1-7510-85

1-7511-82

1-7511-83

1-7511-84

1-7511-85

1-7511-86

1-7511-87

1-7
30

0-3
8

1-7
30

0-3
5

1-7
30

0-3
6

1-7
30

0-3
7

1-6
50

7-1
9

1-6
50

7-1
8

1-6
50

6-8
2

1-6
50

7-4
0

1-6
50

6-9
2

1-7300-32

1-7300-311-7300-27

1-7300-26

1-7300-25

1-7300-24

1-7301-28

1-7301-26

1-7
30

1-1
1

1-7250-11

1-7
301

-36

1-7
301

-35

1-7
301

-34

1-7301-32

1-7301-301-7
30

1-2
9

1-7250-13

1-7
510

-34

1-7
509

-04

1-7
41

1-1

1-7
41

1-2

1-7301-24

1-7301-23

1-7301-22

1-7301-21

1-7301-20

1-7301-19
1-7301-38

1-7301-37

1-7301-39

1-7508

1-7509-19

1-7509-21

1-7510-91

0-7
41

2

1-6
50

6-8
5

1-7301-25
1-7301-31

1-7301-27

1-7
30

1-1
6

1-7
30

1-1
5

1-7
30

1-1
4

1-7
30

1-1
3

1-7
30

1-1
2

1-7
30

1-1
7

1-7
301

-18
1-7250-10

1-7
301

-33

1-7300-62

1-7300-66

1-7300-67 1-7300-72

1-7250-8
1-7300-73

0-7301-3

1-7510-37

1-7509-7

1-7509-14

1-7510-84

1-7509-24

R-2
N 

FR
EN

CH
 R

D

E ASHBURY DR

E GLORY LA

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

E DRAKE LA

R-1A

R-1B

R-2

NC

NC

PD/R-3

R-1A
PD/C-2

P-IP-I

N A
PP

LE
 R

D

N 
FA

LL
VIE

W 
LA

CANVASBACK CIR

N A
PP

LE
BE

ND
 D

R

E FALLCREEK LA

E CANVASBACK LA

PIN
TA

IL 
PL

PIN
TA

IL 
PL

E SANDPIPER LA

E SABLERIDGE DR

E GAZEBO HILL RD

E APPLESEED DR

N REDCRESTED CT

E APPLEVIEW DR

E BENVALLEY DRHO
LL

AN
D 

RD

E EDGEWOOD DR

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

N 
LIG

HT
NI

NG
 D

R

E EVERGREEN DR W EVERGREEN DR

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

CH
ER

RY
VA

LE
 AV

Apostolic Truth Church
Rezoning

R-1A Single-Family District to 
P-I Public Institutional District

Subject Area

Subject Area

PD/R-1A

R-1B

±0 200 400100 Feet

City Limits

City Plan Commission
5-11-2022



3601

3709

38003700

48
31

-33
48

27
48

21
48

13
48

07
-09

48
01

-03
48

25
48

19
48

15

3239

3226

33213311

3310 3320

3311 3321

3501

3609

3617

3517

3509

3301 3303

47
08

47
16

47
2447

25

47
32

47
32

47
24

47
16

47
08

47
08

47
16

47
24

47
32

4809

48
05

47
26

47
18

47
10

47
34

47
26

47
18

47
10

47
34

4811

480
4

47
40

48
00

48
08

47
40

47
40

47
42

47
42

48
00

48
02

48
41

483
5

48
39

4821
4817

4813

4815

49
09

49
01

48
16

48
24

49
00

49
08

49
09 49

16
49

24

48
55

48
49

48
45

48
47

48
53

73

48654861 486748634857 48
01

48
03

4869 4873

3310

50
31

50
26

50
12

50
00

50
38

49
16

49
08

-10
49

18

4717
4719

47
25

47
27

3304
3302

47
09

47
07

47
15

47
17

47
23

47
25

47
31

47
33

47
39

47
41

48
01

48
03

1-6402-1

1-6
40

2-2

1-7509-5

1-7509-18

1-7507-2

1-7507-3

1-7509-17

1-7509-6

1-7
25

0-1
4

1-7
25

0-1
2

1-7510-89

1-7507-4

1-7509-16

1-7510-36

1-6507-4

1-6507-3

1-7
41

1-1
4

1-7411-28

1-7411-27

1-7411-26

1-7411-25

1-7510-35

1-7510-86

1-7510-87

1-7510-88

1-7
30

0-4
3

1-7
30

0-4
4

1-6507-2

1-6507-1

1-6506-99

0-7412-3

0-7412-2

0-7412-1

0-7412-4

0-7
41

2-5

1-7507-1

1-6
50

7-1
1

1-6507-10

1-6507-9

1-6507-8

1-6507-7

1-6507-6

1-6507-5

1-6506-98

1-6506-97

1-6506-96

1-6506-95

1-7412

1-7411-3

1-7411-4

1-7411-5
1-7411-6

1-7411-7

1-7411-8

1-7411-9
1-7411-10

1-7411-11

1-7411-12

1-7
41

1-1
3

1-7411-24

1-7411-23

1-7411-22

1-7411-21

1-7411-20

1-7411-19

1-7411-18
1-7411-17

1-7
41

1-1
6

1-7
41

1-1
5

1-7411-29

1-7411-30

1-7411-31

1-7411-32

1-7411-34

1-7411-35

1-7411-36

1-7411-37

1-7411-38

1-7411-39

1-7411-40

1-7506

1-7507

1-7505

1-7
30

0-3
0

1-7
30

0-2
9

1-7400

1-7411-33

1-7510-85

1-7
30

0-3
8

1-7
30

0-3
7

1-7300-32

1-7300-311-7300-27

1-7301-26

1-7
30

1-1
1

1-7250-11

1-7
301

-36

1-7
301

-35

1-7
301

-34

1-7301-32

1-7301-30

1-7250-13

1-7
510-3

4

1-7
509-0

4

1-7
41

1-1

1-7
41

1-2

1-7301-24

1-7301-23

1-7301-22

1-7301-21

1-7301-20

1-7301-19
1-7301-38

1-7301-37

1-7301-39

1-7508

1-7509-19

0-7
41

2

1-7301-25
1-7301-31

1-7301-27

1-7
30

1-1
6

1-7
30

1-1
5

1-7
30

1-1
4

1-7
30

1-1
3

1-7
30

1-1
2

1-7
30

1-1
7

1-7
301

-18

1-7250-10

1-7
301

-33

0-7301-3

1-7509-14

1-7510-84

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

E GLORY LA

E ASHBURY DR

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

E DRAKE LA Apostolic Truth Church
Rezoning

R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public Institutional District
Aerial Map

Subject Area

0 200 400100 Feet ¯
City Limits

City Plan Commission
5-11-2022



1

Jessica L. Titel

From: Paula Meyer <meyerpaula84@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, May 8, 2022 4:45 PM

To: Jessica L. Titel

Cc: Sheri Hartzheim

Subject: Public Hearing on May 11

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 

links, especially from unknown senders. 

Hello, Jessica and Sheri.  

 

I am not sure who to email based on the notice we received in the mail regarding the Comprehensive Plan Future Land 

Use Map Amendment and Rezoning requests. 

 

My husband and I have no concerns about the requests by Apostolic Truth Church and look forward to having them in 

the neighborhood. 

 

If I need to send this email to another person, please let me know. 

 

Thank you! 

Paula and Greg Meyer 

3226 E Gazebohill Road 

Appleton 

Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution when opening 

attachments or clicking links.  



























 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner/Applicant:  Apostolic Truth Church c/o Sam Al-Saadi 

 

Lot/Parcel:  N. French Road (Tax Id #31-1-7400-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting to amend the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

Future Land Use Map from future One and Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family designations to 

future Public Institutional designation for the subject parcel.  In conjunction with this request, the 

applicant is also proposing to rezone the subject parcel from R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public 

Institutional District.  The requests are being made to accommodate construction of a place of worship. 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

The subject area was purchased by the church in 1993 with the intent of using the property for its future 

place of worship.  The rezoning and comprehensive plan amendment would provide a future land use 

designation that is consistent with the proposed rezoning request and future use of the property.   

 

On March 15, 2017, the Common Council approved/adopted the 5-year update to the Comprehensive 

Plan 2010-2030 and Future Land Use Map.  This plan establishes a vision for future land use, physical 

development, and quality of life in the City and provides a comprehensive set of goals, policies, and 

initiatives to achieve that vision.  The Comprehensive Plan document and the accompanying Future Land 

Use Map also serve as a guide for future growth and development in the City.  Periodically, development 

proposals or changing circumstances within the City may trigger consideration of an amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  That is the case for this request. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Procedural Findings: When a Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment and 

Rezoning application are required for the same development project, the respective staff reports are 

consolidated together as one.  

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The subject site is currently undeveloped land.  The parcel is approximately 

15.37 acres in size.  The property has frontage along East Glory Lane, North Providence Avenue and East 

Ashbury Drive.  The City’s Arterial/Collector Plan classifies East Ashbury Drive and North Providence 

Drive as Collector Streets and East Glory Lane as a Local Street. 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Meeting Date:  May 11, 2022 

Common Council Public Hearing Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022 (Public 

Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning) 

Items:  City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use 

Map Amendment #2-22 and Rezoning #3-22 

Case Managers:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 2 
 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification, Future Land Use Designation, and Current Land Uses:  

 

North:  Zoning – R-1A & R-1B Single-Family District 

 Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – Single-Family Residential 

 

South:  Zoning – R-2 Two -Family District & PD/R-3 Planned Development Multi-Family District 

 Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family Residential 

 

East:  Zoning – NC Nature Conservancy District 

 Future Land Use Designation – Multi-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – City of Appleton owned drainage ditch. 

 

West:  Zoning – R-1A Single-Family District 

 Future Land Use Designation – One and Two-Family Residential 

 Current Land Use – Single-Family Residential 

 

Proposed Future Land Use Designation:  Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan are sometimes 

triggered by technical corrections to omissions or errors, specific development proposals, or changing 

circumstances in the City.  In this case, a specific development proposal for the area is necessitating the 

change to Public/Institutional designation.   

 

The Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 does not identify specific locations for future public/institutional 

uses.  However, Chapter 10 states that while public or institutional uses may be located on land 

designated for any use, certain criteria should guide site selection.  At a minimum, the City should 

consider: 

• Compatibility with existing or planned land uses in the area.  The proposed use of the property as 

a place of worship is consistent with the Public/Institutional Future Land Use designation. 

• Traffic or other impacts and the need for utilities.  The subject area is served by existing 

infrastructure, and the proposed Public/Institutional designation should not have a significant 

impact on traffic. 

• Scale of the proposed use (buildings, etc.) in comparison to existing or planned neighboring uses.  

The Future Land Use Map Amendment request is being made to accommodate a potential future 

place of worship.  Plans have not been provided at this point; however, any development will need 

to adhere to zoning code requirements in regards to setbacks, lot coverage and landscape 

buffering.   

• Whether the proposed location may be better suited to other uses (such as commercial or 

employment-related) that may be needed to serve the neighborhood or provide a proportionally 

greater benefit to the community as a whole.  The Future Land Use Map Amendment request is 

being made to serve the needs of a place of worship that will serve the surrounding neighborhood 

and community, Apostolic Truth Church. 

 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Goals and Objectives:  The Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 and 

Future Land Use Map are intended to guide City growth and development in an organized, efficient 

manner.  The Plan addresses a range of topics related to land use, housing and neighborhoods, economic 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 3 
 

development, transportation, utilities and community facilities, and more.  Evaluating the proposed 

amendment for consistency with relevant goals, objectives, and policies is necessary in determining if 

changes to the Future Land Use Map are appropriate.  The proposed amendment appears to be consistent 

with the following excerpts from the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use:  

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

Policy 10.1.1  Adopt, and as necessary, amend the Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

Proposed Zoning Classification:  The P-I Public Institutional District is intended to provide for public 

and institutional uses and buildings, utilized by the community, and to provide open space standards 

where necessary for the protection of adjacent residential properties.  The development standards for the 

P-I District are listed below: 

 

1) Minimum lot area. None. 

2) Maximum lot coverage. Seventy percent (70%). 

3) Minimum lot width. None. 

4) Minimum front yard. Twenty (20) feet plus an additional one (1) foot for each two (2) feet that the 

building or structure exceeds thirty-five (35) feet in height. 

5) Minimum rear yard. Twenty (20) feet plus an additional one (1) foot for each two (2) feet that the 

building or structure exceeds thirty-five (35) feet in height. 

6) Minimum side yard. Twenty (20) feet plus an additional one (1) foot for each two (2) feet that the 

building or structure exceeds thirty-five (35) feet in height. 

7) Maximum building height. Sixty (60) feet. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  A rezoning is often triggered by development proposals or 

changing circumstances in the City.  In this case, the request is being made to accommodate construction 

of a future place of worship for Apostolic Truth Church.  A place of worship, including its accessory uses, 

are permitted uses in the P-I Public Institutional District.  Any future development would need to conform 

to the P-I District zoning regulations listed above and other sections of the Zoning Ordinance.  Ultimately, 

Site Plan review and approval would be required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code, prior 

to the issuance of a building permit by the Inspections Division. 

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  Related excerpts are listed below. 

 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 4 
 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  If Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 is approved, to identify this area for 

future public/institutional uses, the rezoning request will be in conformance with the 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development. 

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  The subject area is served by existing infrastructure, and 

the transportation network should be able to accommodate the proposed rezoning. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  The proposed rezoning will allow 

for the construction of a place of worship.  Proposed setbacks and parking lot landscape 

buffers will be reviewed in accordance with the Zoning Code requirements at the time of Site 

Plan review.  Therefore, the proposed rezoning request is unlikely to create adverse impacts in 

the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Review Criteria:  Based upon the above analysis, it would appear the criteria established by Section 23-

65(d)(3) Zoning Amendments has been satisfied, provided Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

Amendment #2-22 is approved. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  These items were discussed at the February 1, 2022 

Technical Review Group meeting.  No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Based upon the above analysis, staff recommends the proposed City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 

2010-2030 Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 for the property located on N. French Road (Tax Id. 

#31-1-7400-00) from the One and Two-Family Residential and Multi-Family designations to the 

Public/Institutional designation and resolution, BE APPROVED; and  

 



Future Land Use Map Amendment #2-22 & Rezoning #3-22 

May 11, 2022 

Page 5 
 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for zoning map amendments as required by Section 23-

65(d)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, that Rezoning Application #3-22 to rezone the subject parcel located 

on N. French Road (Tax Id. #31-1-7400-00) from R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public Institutional 

District, including to the centerline of the adjacent right-of-way and as shown on the attached map, BE 

APPROVED.  
 

NOTE:  If approved, Rezoning #3-22 will be reported out at the same Common Council meeting as the 

proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment #2-22 to accurately reflect the change in future land use from  

One and Two-Family Residential  and Multi-Family Residential designations to the Public/Institutional 

designation. 



RESOLUTION 

CITY OF APPLETON 

 

ADOPTION OF THE RECOMMENDED AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AS PREPARED BY THE CITY OF APPLETON PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Appleton pursuant to Section 62.23 of 

the Wisconsin Statutes, has established a City Plan Commission; and  

 

 WHEREAS, on March 3, 2010, the Common Council adopted the City of Appleton 

Comprehensive Plan to promote public health, safety and welfare of the City by effectively 

guiding long-range growth and development within the city and its statutory extraterritorial 

planning jurisdiction; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, of 

the Comprehensive Plan was created in the City of Appleton Code of Ordinances to provide 

procedures and criteria for amending and updating the City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public were invited to make comments at a meeting held on 

May 11, 2022, by the City Plan Commission, wherein the following Comprehensive Plan 

amendment (Amendment #2-22) herein adopted were reviewed and commented upon by 

members of the public; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed the recommended 

amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map at a meeting held on May 11, 2022 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the following 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments, found these amendments to meet the criteria outlined in 

Chapter 12: Implementation, Comprehensive Plan Update Procedures, warranting inclusion in 

this resolution 

 

1. Having been filed with the City Clerk by the City of Appleton Community and 

Economic Development Department requesting a Comprehensive Plan Future Land 

Use Map Amendment to change future land use designations for specified property 

(Tax Id. #31-1-7400-00) on the Future Land Use Map from (One and Two-Family 

Residential Use and Multi-Family Residential Use) to (Public/Institutional Use). 

 

 WHEREAS, members of the public, adjacent and nearby local governmental units will 

be given a 30-day review and comment period prior to the public hearing, which will be 

conducted by the Common Council for the Comprehensive Plan proposed amendment; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after said public hearing, the Common Council will decide whether to 

adopt by ordinance the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan; and 

 



 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan may be used as the basis for, among other things, 

updating the zoning ordinance, accomplishing extra-territorial zoning and as a guide for 

approving or disapproving actions affecting growth and development within the jurisdiction of 

the City of Appleton; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this Comprehensive Plan may from time to time be amended, extended, or 

added to in greater detail; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Appleton Plan Commission 

that the recommended Comprehensive Plan amendments are hereby adopted as a part of the City 

of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 pursuant to §66.1001(4), Wis. Stats. and that the 

Plan Commission recommends said Comprehensive Plan amendments to the City of Appleton 

Common Council for adoption by ordinance, after a 30-day public review and comment period 

and public hearing. 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

   

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 



E GLORY LA

E ASHBURY DR

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

CANVASBACK CIR

Apostolic Truth Church
Future Land Use Map Amendment

One and Two Family Residential and Multi-Family to Public Institutional

0 200 400
Feet

Subject Area
Current

City Plan Commission
5-11-2022

E GLORY LA

E ASHBURY DR

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

CANVASBACK CIR

Subject Area
Proposed

±

Legend
MULTIFAMILY
Public Institutional

One and Two-Family Residential



1-6402-1

1-6
40

2-2

1-6402

1-7509-5

1-7509-18

1-7507-2

1-7507-3

1-7509-20

1-7509-23

1-7511-80

1-7511-81

1-7509-17

1-7509-6

1-7
25

0-1
4

1-7
25

0-1
2

1-7510-89

1-7510-90

1-7510-92

1-7510-93

1-6
50

7-3
8

1-6
50

7-3
7

1-7507-4

1-7509-16

1-7510-36

1-7510-38

1-7510-1

1-6507-4

1-6507-3

1-7
41

1-1
4

1-7411-28

1-7411-27

1-7411-26

1-7411-25

1-7510-33

1-7510-35

1-7510-86

1-7510-87

1-7510-88

1-7510-94

1-7510-95

1-7
30

0-4
1

1-7
30

0-4
2

1-7
30

0-4
3

1-7
30

0-4
4

1-6507-2

1-6507-1

1-6506-99

0-7412-3

0-7412-2

0-7412-1

0-7412-4

0-7
41

2-5

1-6505-1

1-7507-1

1-6
50

7-1
3

1-6
50

7-1
2

1-6
50

7-1
1

1-6507-10

1-6507-9

1-6507-8

1-6507-7

1-6507-6

1-6507-5

1-6506-98

1-6506-97

1-6506-96

1-6506-95

1-6
506

-66

1-6
506

-67

1-6
506

-68

1-6
50

7-3
9

1-6
50

6-8
3

1-6
50

6-8
4

1-6506-94

1-6506-93

1-6506-91

1-6506-90

1-7412

1-7411-3

1-7411-4

1-7411-5

1-7411-6

1-7411-7

1-7411-8

1-7411-9
1-7411-10

1-7411-11

1-7411-12

1-7
41

1-1
3

1-7411-24

1-7411-23

1-7411-22

1-7411-21

1-7411-20

1-7411-19

1-7411-18

1-7411-17

1-7
41

1-1
6

1-7
41

1-1
5

1-7411-29

1-7411-30

1-7411-31

1-7411-32

1-7411-34

1-7411-35

1-7411-36

1-7411-37

1-7411-38

1-7411-39

1-7411-40

1-7506

1-7507

1-7505

1-7504

1-7
30

0-3
0

1-7
30

0-2
9

1-7
30

0-2
8

1-7400

1-7411-33

1-7510-85

1-7511-82

1-7511-83

1-7511-84

1-7511-85

1-7511-86

1-7511-87

1-7
30

0-3
8

1-7
30

0-3
5

1-7
30

0-3
6

1-7
30

0-3
7

1-6
50

7-1
9

1-6
50

7-1
8

1-6
50

6-8
2

1-6
50

7-4
0

1-6
50

6-9
2

1-7300-32

1-7300-311-7300-27

1-7300-26

1-7300-25

1-7300-24

1-7301-28

1-7301-26

1-7
30

1-1
1

1-7250-11

1-7
301

-36

1-7
301

-35

1-7
301

-34

1-7301-32

1-7301-301-7
30

1-2
9

1-7250-13

1-7
510

-34

1-7
509

-04

1-7
41

1-1

1-7
41

1-2

1-7301-24

1-7301-23

1-7301-22

1-7301-21

1-7301-20

1-7301-19
1-7301-38

1-7301-37

1-7301-39

1-7508

1-7509-19

1-7509-21

1-7510-91

0-7
41

2

1-6
50

6-8
5

1-7301-25
1-7301-31

1-7301-27

1-7
30

1-1
6

1-7
30

1-1
5

1-7
30

1-1
4

1-7
30

1-1
3

1-7
30

1-1
2

1-7
30

1-1
7

1-7
301

-18
1-7250-10

1-7
301

-33

1-7300-62

1-7300-66

1-7300-67 1-7300-72

1-7250-8
1-7300-73

0-7301-3

1-7510-37

1-7509-7

1-7509-14

1-7510-84

1-7509-24

R-2
N 

FR
EN

CH
 R

D

E ASHBURY DR

E GLORY LA

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

E DRAKE LA

R-1A

R-1B

R-2

NC

NC

PD/R-3

R-1A
PD/C-2

P-IP-I

N A
PP

LE
 R

D

N 
FA

LL
VIE

W 
LA

CANVASBACK CIR

N A
PP

LE
BE

ND
 D

R

E FALLCREEK LA

E CANVASBACK LA

PIN
TA

IL 
PL

PIN
TA

IL 
PL

E SANDPIPER LA

E SABLERIDGE DR

E GAZEBO HILL RD

E APPLESEED DR

N REDCRESTED CT

E APPLEVIEW DR

E BENVALLEY DRHO
LL

AN
D 

RD

E EDGEWOOD DR

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

N 
LIG

HT
NI

NG
 D

R

E EVERGREEN DR W EVERGREEN DR

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

CH
ER

RY
VA

LE
 AV

Apostolic Truth Church
Rezoning

R-1A Single-Family District to 
P-I Public Institutional District

Subject Area

Subject Area

PD/R-1A

R-1B

±0 200 400100 Feet

City Limits

City Plan Commission
5-11-2022



3601

3709

38003700

48
31

-33
48

27
48

21
48

13
48

07
-09

48
01

-03
48

25
48

19
48

15

3239

3226

33213311

3310 3320

3311 3321

3501

3609

3617

3517

3509

3301 3303

47
08

47
16

47
2447

25

47
32

47
32

47
24

47
16

47
08

47
08

47
16

47
24

47
32

4809

48
05

47
26

47
18

47
10

47
34

47
26

47
18

47
10

47
34

4811

480
4

47
40

48
00

48
08

47
40

47
40

47
42

47
42

48
00

48
02

48
41

483
5

48
39

4821
4817

4813

4815

49
09

49
01

48
16

48
24

49
00

49
08

49
09 49

16
49

24

48
55

48
49

48
45

48
47

48
53

73

48654861 486748634857 48
01

48
03

4869 4873

3310

50
31

50
26

50
12

50
00

50
38

49
16

49
08

-10
49

18

4717
4719

47
25

47
27

3304
3302

47
09

47
07

47
15

47
17

47
23

47
25

47
31

47
33

47
39

47
41

48
01

48
03

1-6402-1

1-6
40

2-2

1-7509-5

1-7509-18

1-7507-2

1-7507-3

1-7509-17

1-7509-6

1-7
25

0-1
4

1-7
25

0-1
2

1-7510-89

1-7507-4

1-7509-16

1-7510-36

1-6507-4

1-6507-3

1-7
41

1-1
4

1-7411-28

1-7411-27

1-7411-26

1-7411-25

1-7510-35

1-7510-86

1-7510-87

1-7510-88

1-7
30

0-4
3

1-7
30

0-4
4

1-6507-2

1-6507-1

1-6506-99

0-7412-3

0-7412-2

0-7412-1

0-7412-4

0-7
41

2-5

1-7507-1

1-6
50

7-1
1

1-6507-10

1-6507-9

1-6507-8

1-6507-7

1-6507-6

1-6507-5

1-6506-98

1-6506-97

1-6506-96

1-6506-95

1-7412

1-7411-3

1-7411-4

1-7411-5
1-7411-6

1-7411-7

1-7411-8

1-7411-9
1-7411-10

1-7411-11

1-7411-12

1-7
41

1-1
3

1-7411-24

1-7411-23

1-7411-22

1-7411-21

1-7411-20

1-7411-19

1-7411-18
1-7411-17

1-7
41

1-1
6

1-7
41

1-1
5

1-7411-29

1-7411-30

1-7411-31

1-7411-32

1-7411-34

1-7411-35

1-7411-36

1-7411-37

1-7411-38

1-7411-39

1-7411-40

1-7506

1-7507

1-7505

1-7
30

0-3
0

1-7
30

0-2
9

1-7400

1-7411-33

1-7510-85

1-7
30

0-3
8

1-7
30

0-3
7

1-7300-32

1-7300-311-7300-27

1-7301-26

1-7
30

1-1
1

1-7250-11

1-7
301

-36

1-7
301

-35

1-7
301

-34

1-7301-32

1-7301-30

1-7250-13

1-7
510-3

4

1-7
509-0

4

1-7
41

1-1

1-7
41

1-2

1-7301-24

1-7301-23

1-7301-22

1-7301-21

1-7301-20

1-7301-19
1-7301-38

1-7301-37

1-7301-39

1-7508

1-7509-19

0-7
41

2

1-7301-25
1-7301-31

1-7301-27

1-7
30

1-1
6

1-7
30

1-1
5

1-7
30

1-1
4

1-7
30

1-1
3

1-7
30

1-1
2

1-7
30

1-1
7

1-7
301

-18

1-7250-10

1-7
301

-33

0-7301-3

1-7509-14

1-7510-84

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

E GLORY LA

E ASHBURY DR

N A
LT

AM
ON

T D
R

E DRAKE LA Apostolic Truth Church
Rezoning

R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public Institutional District
Aerial Map

Subject Area

0 200 400100 Feet ¯
City Limits

City Plan Commission
5-11-2022



1

Jessica L. Titel

From: Paula Meyer <meyerpaula84@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, May 8, 2022 4:45 PM

To: Jessica L. Titel

Cc: Sheri Hartzheim

Subject: Public Hearing on May 11

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 

links, especially from unknown senders. 

Hello, Jessica and Sheri.  

 

I am not sure who to email based on the notice we received in the mail regarding the Comprehensive Plan Future Land 

Use Map Amendment and Rezoning requests. 

 

My husband and I have no concerns about the requests by Apostolic Truth Church and look forward to having them in 

the neighborhood. 

 

If I need to send this email to another person, please let me know. 

 

Thank you! 

Paula and Greg Meyer 

3226 E Gazebohill Road 

Appleton 

Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution when opening 

attachments or clicking links.  



























 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  Menard, Inc. 

 

Applicant:  Tracey Erickson – Erickson Enterprises, LLC 

 

Address/Parcel #:  3200 E. Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for a car wash and self-serve dog 

wash. 

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

The subject parcel is currently vacant and is approximately 3.6 acres in size.  The applicant has filed an 

application for a Certified Survey Map to split the existing parcel into two lots (File #14-22).  The car wash 

will be located on Lot 2 of the proposed Certified Survey Map.  Lot 2 will be 78,408 square feet in size. 

 

On November 15, 2017, the Common Council approved an Official Map Amendment to remove lands 

previously identified for future stormwater pond on the subject parcel.  

 

On July 20, 2011, Common Council adopted Ordinance 153-11, which amended the City’s Official Map to 

officially map land area for a future stormwater pond generally located at the northeast corner of Kensington 

Drive and Express Court.  This action by Common Council was based on a July 10, 2009 report by AECOM 

of the Kensington North Drainage Area and was meant to preserve land in case a stormwater pond was 

determined to be needed.  The Department of Public Works subsequently determined the stormwater pond 

would not be needed and initiated an Official Map amendment in 2017 (see above). 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  The applicant proposes construct a car wash and self-serve dog wash on the subject 

site as shown on the attached development plans.  The proposed development includes the following: 

 

• A 5,307 square foot automated car wash building with a single service bay. 

• Car wash stacking spaces for 24 vehicles are located along the east side of the building with the 

service bay entrance located on the north side of the building.  

• Access will be provided via an existing driveway on Express Court and will be shared with 

Menards and the proposed car wash. 

• Approximately 24 vacuum stations. 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  June 8, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022 

 

Item:  Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #6-22 

June 8, 2022 

Page 2 
 

• Proposed hours of operation are from 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM each day.  

 

Operational Information:  A plan of operation is attached to the staff report. 

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The car wash will be located on Lot 2 of a recently submitted application for a 

two-lot Certified Survey Map (File #14-22).  Lot 2 will be 78,408 square feet in size.  The subject site is 

currently vacant land.  Access will be from East Express Court and will share an existing drive aisle with 

the property to the east. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The site is surrounded on all sides by existing commercial 

development.   

 

North:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the north is undeveloped land and a 

stormwater detention pond. 

 

South:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the south is currently commercial 

(MotoMart gas station with car wash and Subway). 

 

East:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the east is commercial (Menards). 

 

West:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the west is commercial (Mr. Cinders 

restaurant). 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Commercial designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and greenfield 

development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 



Special Use Permit #6-22 

June 8, 2022 

Page 3 
 

Current Zoning and Procedural Findings:  The subject property has a zoning designation of C-2 General 

Commercial District.  Per Section 23-113(e) of the Municipal Code, a car wash requires a Special Use 

Permit in the C-2 District.  The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who 

will make the final decision on the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds vote of the Common Council is 

required for approval. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan Commission 

and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to approve, approve with 

conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and information, other than 

merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements and conditions an 

applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would accept in support of 

a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be reasonable, and to the extent 

practicable, measurable. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards for granting a Special Use 

Permit under Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code:  1. proper zoning district: C-2 zoning allows 

car washes as a special use permit, 2. zoning district regulations: compliance with zoning code regulations 

will be reviewed with the site plan, 3. special regulations: not applicable to carwashes, 4. consistent with 

comprehensive plan and other plans: yes, see above analysis, 5. traffic: applicant will share an existing 

driveway with Menards, no concerns submitted by traffic engineer, 6. landscaping and screening: the 

landscaping will be reviewed with the Site Plan and is required to be consistent with zoning ordinance 

standards, 7. neighborhood compatibility: the proposed use is located adjacent to existing commercial uses 

and near CTH CE, and 8. impact on services: the City has existing utilities, services and equipment in place 

to serve this proposed use).  These standards were found in the affirmative, as long as all stipulations are 

satisfied.  

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the May 3, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above, that Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash located at 3200 E. 

Express Court (Tax Id #31-4-5568-00), as shown on the attached materials and per attached plan of 

operation, along with the attached resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the land, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. The owner shall have twelve (12) months from the issuance of the Special Use Permit to obtain a 

building permit and/or occupancy permit for the proposed carwash or Special Use Permit #6-22 will 

expire pursuant to Sections 23-66 (f)(1) b. and c. of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition to ensure the use is established in a timely 

manner. This condition will not be applicable when the building permit and/or occupancy permit 

is issued.  

 



Special Use Permit #6-22 

June 8, 2022 

Page 4 
 

 

2. Prior to the construction of the carwash and building permits being issued, site plan review and 

approval is required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the owner and applicant that they are 

required to receive site plan approval from the Community and Economic Development 

Department prior to receiving building permits from the Inspection Division for the project 

pursuant to Section 23-570(e)4) of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

3. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility, Noise and other Municipal Codes, and all 

applicable State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition assures the applicant understands they must follow the 

City’s Municipal Code and all applicable State and Federal laws which they are required to 

follow while conducting business in the City; failure to follow City, State and Federal 

regulations may result in enforcement action pursuant to Sections 1-16, 1-17, 23-66(f)(5) and 

23-69 of the Municipal Ordinance.   

 

4. Any future expansions of the carwash, changes to the development plans, plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #6-22    

CAR WASH 

3200 EAST EXPRESS COURT 

 

 

WHEREAS, Tracey Erickson, Erickson Enterprises, LLC, has applied for a Special Use Permit for a car wash 

located at 3200 E. Express Court, also identified as Parcel Number 31-4-5568-00; and 

 

WHEREAS, the location for the proposed car wash is located in the C-2 General Commercial District, and the 

proposed use may be permitted by Special Use Permit within this zoning district pursuant to Chapter 23 of the 

Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on June 8, 2022 on Special Use 

Permit #6-22, at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or present written comments and 

other materials at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the Community and 

Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written 

evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a Special Use Permit 

under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing conditions on the 

Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and forwarded Special Use Permit #6-22 

to the City of Appleton Common Council with a   favorable conditional      or       not favorable      (CIRCLE 

ONE) recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and recommendation of the City 

of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on June 15, 2022. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Common Council, 

based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing and Common Council meeting, 

and having considered the recommendation of the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 

 

1. Determines all standards listed under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code are found in the 

affirmative     YES     or     NO      (CIRCLE ONE) 

 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash 

located at 3200 E. Express Court, also identified as Parcel Number 31-4-5568-00, based upon the following 

standards and determinations:  (List reason(s) why the Special Use Permit was denied) 

 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #6-22 for a car wash 

located at 3200 E. Express Court, also identified as Parcel Number 31-4-5568-00, subject to the following 



2 | P a g e  

 

conditions as they are related to the purpose of the City of Appleton Municipal Code and based on 

substantial evidence: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #6-22 

 

A. The owner shall have twelve (12) months from the issuance of the Special Use Permit to obtain a 

building permit and/or occupancy permit for the proposed carwash or Special Use Permit #6-22 will 

expire pursuant to Sections 23-66 (f)(1) b. and c. of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

B. Prior to the construction of the carwash and building permits being issued, site plan review and approval 

is required, pursuant to Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code. 

 

C. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility, Noise and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable 

State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

D. Any future expansions of the carwash, changes to the development plans, plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the owner/applicant, 

Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, and any other interested party. 

 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



4-6
00

2

4-6
00

3

4-5
56

8-5

4-5
56

8-7

4-5
56

8-6

4-5
56

8-8

0-5566

0-5704-2

4-5611

0-5704

4-5568-4

4-6024 4-6005 4-6004 4-5567-2
4-5567-3

4-5567-1

4-5566

4-5704-1

4-5704-3

4-5568-9

4-5704-5

0-5568-4

4-5568

331243
0

11
5 11

0

3000

22
1

3300

33333221

32
0

3000

30403030

33293020 3201

A B C D FE H NI J K L

43
3

E COLLEGE AV

E EXPRESS CT

N 
KE

NS
IN

GT
ON

 D
R

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

E WAREHOUSE RD

E COLLEGE AV

C-2

M-2

M-1

R-1B PD/R-3R-2

HW
Y 4

41
E FOREST ST

E NEWBERRY ST

E LOURDES DR

S J
OS

EP
H 

ST

S F
ID

EL
IS 

ST

CTY TK CE

S B
UC

HA
NA

N 
ST

S S
CH

AE
FE

R 
ST

S C
LA

RA
 ST

E COLLEGE AV

CREEKVIEW LA

W KENNEDY AV

W THIRD ST
S C

HR
IS

TIN
E S

T
W KIMBERLY AV

W FOURTH ST

S A
RL

IN
GT

ON
 S

T VAN ROY RDS M
ID

PA
RK

 D
R

E EDGEMERE DR

E CANARY ST

S C
OV

EN
AN

T L
A

MA
TT

HE
W

 ST

LYNN DR

HWY 441  ON RAMP

MI
LK

Y W
AY

EMONS RD

S A
UR

OR
A D

R

TRUMAN ST
RA

DI
O 

RD
E PETER ST

E EXPRESS CT

KIN
G 

CT

S F
RE

DE
RI

CK
 ST

E JULIE ST HW
Y 4

41 Special Use Permit
Car Wash

E. Express Court
Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
6-8-2022

Subject Area

±
0 200 400100

Feet



0-5567-320-5567-12

4-6
00

2

4-6
00

3

4-5
56

8-5

4-5
56

8-7

4-5
56

8-6

4-5
56

8-8

0-5566

0-5704-2

0-5567-1

4-5611

0-5704

4-5568-4

4-6024 4-6005 4-6004 4-5567-2
4-5567-3

4-5567-1

4-5566

4-5704-1

4-5704-3

4-5568-9

4-5704-5

0-5568-4

4-5568

3210 3214 331243
0

11
5 11

0

3000

22
1

3300

33333221

32
0

3000

30403030

33293020 3201

A B C D FE H NI J K L

43
3

E COLLEGE AV

E EXPRESS CT

N 
KE

NS
IN

GT
ON

 D
R

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

E WAREHOUSE RD

E COLLEGE AV

Special Use Permit
Car Wash

E. Express Court
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
6-8-22

Subject Area

±
0 200 400100

Feet









EXPRESS COURT

WAREHOUSE

ROAD

K
E

N
S

IN
G

T
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

DATE REVISIONBY NO.

S
H

E
E

T

P
R

O
J.

 M
G

R
:

D
R

A
F

T
E

D
:

D
A

T
E

:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
:

D
A

T
E

:

M
R

M

JW
R

2
0

2
2

.0
0

3
4

.0
1

PEAK CAR WASH
DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

FOR

PEAK, INC.
CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

H
C

 S
T

A
L
L
S

 
2

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 S
T

A
L
L
S

 
2

6

T
O

T
A

L
2

8

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
IT

E
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

T
O

T
A

L
 L

O
T

 A
R

E
A

  
5

,3
0

7
 s

.f
.

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

S

2
5

,4
8

4
 s

.f
.

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 A
R

E
A

S

4
7

,6
1

7
 s

.f
.

G
R

E
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

 A
R

E
A

Z
O

N
IN

G
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

Z
O

N
IN

G

C
-2

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T

S
P

E
C

IA
L
 U

S
E

 P
E

R
M

IT
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
S

F
R

O
N

T
1

0
 F

E
E

T

R
E

A
R

2
0

 F
E

E
T

S
ID

E
0

 F
E

E
T

A
L
J

C
-4

6
0

'

S
C

A
L
E

 1
" 

=
 3

0
'

3
0

'
0

'
3

0
'

6
0

'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
 K

IO
S

K
S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 V
A

C
U

U
M

P
U

M
P

 H
O

U
S

E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

D
U

M
P

S
T

E
R

E
N

C
L
O

S
U

R
E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

T
R

A
N

S
F

O
R

M
E

R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
A

R
 W

A
S

H
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G

(O
N

E
 S

T
O

R
Y

)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

V
A

C
U

U
M

 S
T

A
T

IO
N

S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

B
A

S
IN

 A
R

E
A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
T

O
P

 B
A

R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
T

O
P

 S
IG

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 6
6
'x

3
3
' 
W

ID
E

IN
G

R
E

S
S

/E
G

R
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

0
3

-2
5

-2
0

2
2

0
4

-1
1

-2
0

2
2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 6
6
'x

8
5
' 
W

ID
E

IN
G

R
E

S
S

/E
G

R
E

S
S

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

T
O

T
A

L
 L

O
T

 A
R

E
A

 

7
8

,4
0

8
 s

.f
.

G
R

E
E

N
 S

P
A

C
E

 A
R

E
A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
N

O
W

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 A

R
E

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

S
IG

N





 

 

 

 

 

 
TO: Community and Economic Development Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: June 8, 2022 

RE: Offer to Purchase – Tax Id #31-9-5712-40, Lot 1 of CSM 3549 
Southpoint Commerce Park, River Valley One, LLC 

 
 
The City of Appleton has received an Offer to Purchase from River Valley One, LLC and/or 
assigns for Lot 1 of CSM 3549 in the Southpoint Commerce Park, comprised of 
approximately 7.22 acres.    
 
The proposed purchase price is $275,000 which $38,088.64/acre.  Our asking price for 
land in Southpoint is $40,000/acre. 
 
This offer includes earnest money of $10,000 and provides a due diligence period of 120 
days with two 30-day extensions.  With each extension, $5,000 of this earnest money 
becomes non-refundable should buyer exercise the due diligence extensions. 
 
The payment of an 8% commission to procuring broker is standard per policy. 
 
Staff would recommend the CEDC goes into closed session to discuss the terms of a 
counter offer to the River Valley One, LLC offer to purchase. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
The City of Appleton counter the Offer To Purchase for Lot 1, CSM 3549, Southpoint 
Commerce Park, from River Valley One, LLC BE APPROVED.   

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 































andershm
Text Box
Exhibit B Deed Restrictions

























Calumet Street (County Highway KK)

Sta
te H

igh
way 

441

Midway Road

Milis Drive

Qu
es

t D
riv

e

La
ke

lan
d D

riv
e

Eis
en

ho
we

r D
riv

e Co
op

 R
oa

d

Eis
en

ho
we

r D
riv

e

De
sti

na
tio

n D
riv

e (
Pr

iva
te)

Retail
CenterOffice

Park
26

05
26

25

All
ian

ce
 D

riv
e

Vantage Drive

Endeavor Drive 3920

Plank Road

Plank Road

Custom
OffsetsSecurity

Luebke

Farrell
Equiptment

FLAIR

Subject
Parcel

9-5712-34
Lot 34

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-39
3.64 acres

$40,000/acre

Accepted Offer
30 Acres

NMCR

F Street 
Development

Custom
OffsetsRDI

Veritiv

9-5712-25
Lot 25

SCP Plat No. 2
4.88 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-15
Lot 15

SCP Plat No. 2
4.83 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-18
Lot 18

SCP Plat No. 2
4.07 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-6
Lot 6

SCP Plat No. 1
3.01 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-24
Lot 24

SCP Plat No. 2
2.88 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-21
Lot 21

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-22
Lot 22

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-23
Lot 23

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-36
Lot 36

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre
9-5712-35

Lot 35
SCP Plat No. 3

2.59 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-37
Lot 37

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-16
Lot 16

SCP Plat No. 2
3.69 acres

$40,000/acre

Encapsys

9-5712-19
Lot 19

SCP Plat
No. 2

3.46 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-5
Lot 5

SCP Plat No. 1
2.32 acres

$40,000/acre

Appleton
Hydraulic

Components

Southpoint Commerce Park
Appleton, Wisconsin

Prepared by City of Appleton
Comm. & Econ. Dev. Dept. 6/2022

0 400 800200
FeetÜ

Legend
Subject Parcel
Accepted Offer
City Limits
Park Boundary
For Sale (City Owned)
Privately Owned Parcels



 

   

 

 

 

 
TO: Community and Economic Development Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: June 8, 2022 

RE: Waiver of Repurchase Right for Tax Key #31-1-6510-18, Northeast Business 
Park Plat 2, Lot 18, Northeast corner of Enterprise Avenue and Intertech Court 

 
The City received a request for a variance to the City’s Deed Restrictions and Covenants 
related to repurchase rights from Romenesko Developments, Inc., on behalf of Single 
Month, LLC, for Northeast Business Park Plat 2, Lot 18.  The requested waiver document 
is attached. 
 
This lot is located in the Northeast Business Park and comprises approximately 2.07 
acres.  The sales price on the accepted offer is $615,000 ($297,101.45/acre).  Staff 
recommends a variance to facilitate development on the site in this case only. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
The Community and Economic Development Committee provide a variance to the City’s 
Repurchase Rights for Northeast Business Park Plat 2, Lot 18 allowing the transfer from 
Single Month, LLC to Joe Neilitz and/or Assigns BE APPROVED.  This waiver of 
repurchase rights is not transferable, survivable, or assignable, and the City’s repurchase 
rights would remain on this property. 

 
 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



1

Brenda Broeske

From: Romenesko Developments, Inc. <rdi-appleton@att.net>
Sent: Wednesday, March 2, 2022 12:56 PM
To: Matthew Rehbein
Cc: Greg Landwehr
Subject: Lot 18, Appleton Northeast Business Park
Attachments: Lot 18-Enterprise_OTP.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 

Hello Mr. Rehbein - 
 
Attached is a copy of an offer to purchase, we accepted yesterday, for Lot 18 in the Appleton Northeast 
Business Park (corner of Enterprise Avenue and Intertech Drive), parcel number 311651018. It is owned 
by one of Carl D. Romenesko's entities, Single Month, LLC. The lot has been on the market for a number 
of years, originally listed with Patrick Connor of NAI Pfefferle. Pat has indicated that he informed the City 
at the time of the original listing that is was for sale. 
 
The Covenants indicates that the City of Appleton shall have the right to repurchase the property. We are 
requesting that the City reject repurchase and allow us to continue with the sale. 
 
Please confirm receipt of this e-mail and let me know if you need anything else as time is of the essence. 
 
Thank You, 
Kristin Ginthum 
Executive Assistant 
 

Romenesko Developments, Inc.  
1818 E Wisconsin Avenue. Appleton, WI 54911  
Office: (920)731-5850  |  Fax: (920)731-8750 
www.rdi2build.com 

Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links.  















































Premium 
Waters/

B&F 
Fastener

1-5362
NEIP Plat 4

Lot 4
1.44 ac

40,000/acre
Option

Prepared by City of Appleton
Comm. & Econ. Dev. Dept. 3/22

Northeast Business Park
Appleton, Wisconsin

Evergreen Dr Evergreen Dr

Fre
nc

h R
d

S.T
.H

. 4
41

U.S.H. 41

Enterprise Av

Int
ert

ec
h C

t

Pr
ov

ide
nc

e A
v

Lig
htn

ing
 D

rGa
tew

ay
 D

r

Enterprise Av

Venture Dr

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 D
r

Co
nk

ey
 St

Goodland Dr

Ba
lla

rd 
Rd

 (C
.T.

H.
 E

)
Ba

lla
rd 

Rd
 (C

.T.
H.

 E
)

Po
int

er 
Rd

Capitol Dr

Ro
em

er 
Rd

Ma
rsh

all
 R

d Co
nk

ey
 St

Pensar Dr

Winslow Av

Pr
og

res
s D

r

Zu
eh

lke
 D

r

Northland Av (C.T.H. OO)

Capitol Dr

Pershing St

Sa
nd

ra 
St

Co
nk

ey
 St

Ro
em

er 
Rd

Glendale Av

Wisconsin Central

S.T
.H

. 4
41

Ba
lla

rd 
Rd

 (C
.T.

H.
 E

)

0 0.25 0.5 Miles

Appleton Marine

CMD Technology
Center

CMD
Corporation

Applied
Industrial

Technologies

MCC, Inc.

Valley Packaging
Industries

Voith Paper, Inc.

City of Appleton
Municipal Services

Waupaca Elevator

Pro-Con
Progressive
Converting

Voith Paper, Inc.

National Graphic
Solutions The Boldt

Company

Vitran

Miller

August
Winter
& Sons

Swagelok
Appleton

Fox Valley
Safety & 
Training

AlumaCast &
Bronze Foundry

Ferguson
Enterprises

Ahearn/
JLM/

L & S Electric

Landfill
Reduction

& Recycling

CMD

Guardian Life
Insurance Company

Laminations
(Great Northern

Company) C3 Corp.

Gannett Co. Inc.

AirgasOutagame
County

JP Graphics

L & W 
Supply

Wisconsin
Distributors

Floor
Source
CoEx

Packer Fastner
Mid America

Engman-
Taylor Co.

Able
Distrib.

Nordon
Business
Environ-
mentsLifting

Gear
Hire

FCX
Performance

Pro-Label

Veritiv

United
Moving Systems

Packerland
Rent-A-Mat

Standard
Electric

Vision Control
& Automation
SE Automation

ASP
Armament
Systems

and
Procedures

Marco

Ducommun

Perfect
Patterns

L&S
Electric

BASF
Corporation

Appleton
Packing

& Gasket

A to Z
Machine

Integrity
Mutual

Insurance Co.

Valley
Tool

OEM
Tech.

IPS
Central
States
Casters

Marathon Center
Poyry
Metso

UW-Oshkosh

Energy
Control

& Design

Encircle
Health

Shopko
Express

Grant
Thornton

GDC
Menn Law
Women's

Care of Wis.

Well 
Within

Larson
Engineering

Rockwell
Automation

Ziegler
Master

Graphics

Wis. Oculoplastics
Assoc. in

Gastroenterology

Cintas
Fire

Protection

AIM Trucking
Baker Tilly
Dedicated
Computing

Hoff Law Offices
R Medi Spa

New York Life

Anixter/
Ellipticon

Overend
Technologies

Wipfli

Beefeaters
Pub

Cambria
Suites

Cleanfreak.com

Valley
Coatings

Allied
Valve

Evergreen
Office
Suites

Fox
Cities
Party
Rental

Orthopedic
& Spine
Therapy

Primary Care
Associates

Thedacare
Physicians
Pediatrics

McCarty
Law LLP

Epiphany 
Law

AmericInn

Orthopedic & Sports
Institute of the Fox Valley

Recovery Inn

Dental
Associates

2239

17
26

2430

2441 2625

2620 2800

3001

21
11

23
00

24
00

2901 3005
3200 3230 3240

23
51

30303000

23
23

22
00

21
00

24
12

25
00

26
00

26
00

27
3027

41
27

01
25

25
25

01
26

01

28
09

29
01

27012611 3111

28
20

28
10

3300

29
00

30
10

30
05

29
10

29
15

2720

29
20

30
09

3311

32
10

321131113011
Airgas

Badger Mailing
Systems

Endeavor
Electric

30
2531

20
31

17Bartelt
Insulation

31
01

3012

2619
ASP

2511 2500

31
20

31
37

31
15

30
35

A to Z

31
00

29
0029

27

30
40

30
00

Pro
Vidant

2221

2222

TEC
TMC
MTC
AMS

31
16

2121
2323

2319

2300

3001

3030

34
00

3011
35

00

3010 3300

Fox Valley
Hematology
& Oncology

Klusendorf
Chiropractic
Progressive

Forefront 
Dermatology

2101 2115 2331

2701 2801

39
00

39
40

2401

2201

2105

2500

2501
2700 2800

2901 3001 3101

31003000

3101 3301 3401 3701

40
00

39
12

39
00

38
00

3916

Pro-Con

30
10

2505

39
35

Konecranes

AZCO

Ü

39
25

Weed
Man

El 
Jaripeo

USACE

City of Appleton

Legend
Subject Parcels
For Sale (City owned)
Accepted Offer
Park Parcels
Park Boundary
City Limits

A to Z

GLK 
Foods

Triple E Machine

Pro-Con

Valley Tool



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Community and Economic Development Committee 

  

FROM: Nikki Gerhard, Community Development Specialist   

 

DATE:  June 8, 2022  

 

RE: 2021 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 

 

 

The City of Appleton has prepared its 2021 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 

(CAPER) as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The CAPER 

discusses Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) activities undertaken by the City of Appleton 

during the 2021 Program Year (April 1, 2021 - March 31, 2022). 

 

The CAPER was available May 2 - June 1, 2022 for public comment. No comments were received. 

 

Comments on the CAPER will also be accepted during a public hearing that will be held during the June 

8, 2022 Community and Economic Development Committee meeting. The primary function of this 

hearing is to obtain citizen comments on the submission. 

 

The City considers all public input received before preparing its final submission, in addition to providing 

HUD with a summary of such comments as they relate to the 2021 CAPER. The CAPER is due to HUD 

by June 29, 2022. 

 

A copy of the CAPER may be found online at https://www.appleton.org/government/community-and-

economic-development/grants-administration/community-development-block-grant-cdbg/cdbg-

documents or a copy is available for viewing at the first floor Customer Service area at City Hall. 

 

Staff requests that CEDC approve the 2021 CAPER.  

 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (920) 832-6469 or nikki.gerhard@appleton.org.  Thank 

you! 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Community and Economic Development Department, 100 North Appleton Street, Appleton, WI  54911  (920) 832-6468 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

https://www.appleton.org/government/community-and-economic-development/grants-administration/community-development-block-grant-cdbg/cdbg-documents
https://www.appleton.org/government/community-and-economic-development/grants-administration/community-development-block-grant-cdbg/cdbg-documents
https://www.appleton.org/government/community-and-economic-development/grants-administration/community-development-block-grant-cdbg/cdbg-documents
mailto:nikki.gerhard@appleton.org


 2021PY CDBG CAPER 1 

 

 2021-2022PY  
Consolidated Annual Performance & Evaluation Report  

This report contains outcomes and accomplishments from various CDBG funding sources, including 2021PY 

CDBG, CDBG-CV1, and CDBG-CV3. 

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan.  91.520(a) 
This could be an overview that includes major initiatives and highlights that were proposed and 
executed throughout the program year. 
In a typical program year, the primary goal of the City of Appleton's Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) program is to develop a viable urban community through the provision of decent housing, suitable living 
environments, and economic opportunities, namely for low- and moderate-income persons. However, due to 
the COVID-19 outbreak that caused unprecedented unemployment and put thousands of households at risk of 
being unable to afford housing and other basic needs, the City shifted focus to support all activities that were 
responding to the growing effects of the public health crisis. Authorized by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security Act (CARES Act), the City of Appleton was awarded a Round 1 special allocation, totaling 
$348,255, and several months later, a Round 3 special allocation totaling $343,268. The special allocations of 
Community Development Block Grant funding were used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to COVID-19.  

 
2021 CDBG- $610,569 
Appleton Housing Authority- while promoting quality, affordable housing for all residents of the 
City of Appleton, five households received homebuyer assistance and two households received 
homebuyer rehabilitation assistance.  
 
Apricity, Inc. (DBA The Mooring Programs)- through the provision of a full spectrum of care in a 
safe, progressive recovery community, the residential programs served 227 men and women. Of 
those who had services at Mooring House, 24 of them transitioned to the Male Apartment 
Prorgram. 
 
The City of Appleton's Homeowner Rehabilitation Loan Program- assisted 22  low- to moderate-
income homeowners (less than 80 percent CMI) with the ability to live in decent, safe, and sanitary 
housing. Additionally, all 22 homeowners received technical assistance from staff regarding home 
rehabilitation. 
 
Habitat for Humanity- acquired two properties, renovated the houses, and sold them to families 
who were below 80 percent of the median family income and unable to purchase a home on the 
open market.  
 
LEAVEN, Inc.- stabilized and empowered people in financial crisis by providing financial assistance, 
referrals, and case management to address near- and long-term basic needs for 80 households on 
the brink of homelessness. 

 
Metropolitan Milwaukee Fair Housing Council- promoted fair housing and provided services to 
167 recipients, including fair housing education and outreach for consumers and providers, social 

GOALS & OUTCOMES (CR-O5)



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 2 

 

service agencies, and community-based organizations; complaint intake and counseling; and 
technical assistance. 
 
Pillars, Inc.- through several shelter facility upgrades, were able to better serve and house 748 
households experiencing homelessness. These services and upgrades occurred between two 
shelter sites. 
 
Rebuilding Together Fox Valley- by providing critical home repairs at no cost to West Appleton 
Neighborhood homeowners, safety and health concerns were resolved for 18 families in need. 
 
Wisconsin Women’s Business Initiative Corporation (WWBIC)- led microenterprise development 
within the City of Appleton by providing services and technical assistance to 102 total clients- 53 
considered of low and moderate income. 
 
Appleton Police Department, in collaboration with the Boys & Girls Club of the Fox Valley- 
provided programming for at-risk youth in the Appleton Area School District with opportunities 
to earn stipends, credits toward graduation, bike, community service, and career-based learning. 
While 18 students originally enrolled for the program, only 12 graduated. 
 

 

City staff continued to work closely with philanthropic entities and community partners to understand the needs 
of the community during the pandemic. Throughout 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic posed a clear risk to people 
experiencing homelessness, the precariously housed, and service provider organizations. Access to stable 
housing helped eliminate many of the barriers surrounding obtaining and maintaining health and safety. To 
address instability in the community as a result of the COVID-19 health emergency, the following activities 
continued to manage the short and long-term needs resulting from the public health crisis. 
 

2020 CDBG-CV1- $348,255 
Apricity, Inc. (DBA The Mooring Programs)- Apricity’s Mooring House Residential Treatment 
program served 216 men and women between November 1, 2020 and October 31, 2021. 
 
Fox Valley Lutheran Homes- provided WiFi access and devices to 35 older adult tenants as they 
continued to isolate due to COVID-19. This program enhanced the mental and physical well-being 
of tenants and allowed them to keep their minds active by connecting with resources online and 
through technology. 
 
LEAVEN, Inc.- prevented economically disadvantaged and vulnerable households from slipping 
into greater poverty and homelessness through their Emergency Assistance Program. The funds 
were used to provide rental assistance to 131 households. 
 
Motel Voucher Program- The City of Appleton’s Motel Voucher Program, in collaboration with 
the Appleton Area School District ensured that 27 households (110 individuals and families) 
experiencing homelessness had a safe, temporary place to stay until a more permanent housing 
solution was identified.  The Motel Voucher Program includes a case management component, 
food, transportation, and connection to housing solutions. 
 
Pillars, Inc.- Through the incorporation of an additional shelter case manager, 60 individuals 
experiencing homelessness were able to be connected to additional resources during their stay 
at the Adult Shelter. This resulted in an increase of successful exits from shelter, opening more 
space for others experiencing homelessness due to the economic effects of COVID-19. 
 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 3 

 

Salvation Army of the Fox Cities- The Housing Retention Program provided rental assistance for 
16 households (36 individuals) on the cusp of losing their housing due to nonpayment of rent, 
thereby preventing homelessness in the community.  
 
Wisconsin Women’s Business Initiative Corporation (WWBIC)- provided four grants of $10,000 
to small businesses to ensure their survival and resiliency during the COVID-19 crisis and 
retention of jobs. 
 

2020 CDBG-CV3- $343,268 
ADVOCAP, Inc.- Through an executed MOU, ADVOCAP provided street outreach, information and 
referrals, completed assessments, intakes, short-term case management, and services to five 
individuals living in unsheltered locations, such as cars, parks, abandoned buildings, and on the 
streets. The Street Outreach and Case Management role reached people who might not otherwise 
have sought assistance or come to the attention of the homelessness service system, and ensured 
that people’s basic needs were met while supporting them along pathways toward housing 
stability. 
 
Motel Voucher Program- The City of Appleton’s Motel Voucher Program ensured that five 
individuals experiencing homelessness had a safe, temporary place to stay, as well as case 
management, food, transportation, and connection to housing solutions. Of the five served, three 
successfully retained permanent housing; one entered emergency shelter; and the other, 
unfortunately, returned to living in a place no meant for human habitation. 

 

Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the 
consolidated plan and explain, if applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and 
objectives.91.520(g)  
 
 

Goal Category 
Source / 
Amount 

Unit of 
Measure 

Expected – 
Strategic Plan 

Actual – 
Strategic 

Plan 
Percent 

Complete 

Expected – 
Program 

Year 

Actual – 
Program 

Year 
Percent 

Complete 

Admin Admin CDBG: 

$82,433 

Other 5 2 40% 1 1 100% 

Homebuyer 

assistance 

Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$6,000 

HH 

Assisted 

25 9 36% 4 5 125% 

Improve & 

maintain housing 

stock 

Affordable 

Housing 

  

CDBG: 

$307,892 

Housing 

Unit 

180 80 44% 41 44 107% 

Public facilities 

improvement & 

maintenance 

Non-Housing 

Comm Dev 

CDBG: 

$66,528 

Persons 

Assisted 

1,300 1,982 152% 1,541 975 63% 

Public services 

 

 CDBG: 

$618,284 

Persons 

Assisted 

800 2,522 315% 289 469 162% 

Economic 

Development 

WWBIC 8/8 

Businesses CDBG: 

$108,030 

Business 

Assisted 

4 8 200% 4 8 200% 

Table 1 - Accomplishments – Program Year & Strategic Plan to Date *Note: This table captures accomplishments only for City of Appleton 
residents that were served for the 2021 program year, and includes funding sources: CDBG, CDBG-CV1, and CDBG-CV3. 
 

 
Assess how the jurisdiction’s use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific 
objectives identified in the plan, giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified. 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 4 

 

The City of Appleton's 2021 CDBG funding, including CV Rounds 1 and 3, primarily focused on public service 
activities that prevented, prepared for, and responded to the COVID-19 pandemic. However, several allocations 
were made that address public facility improvements and maintaining existing affordable housing stock. All 
funded projects addressed Strategic Plan objectives (decent housing, suitable living environments, and 
expanded economic opportunities) and high priority needs under the 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan (housing 
rehabilitation, public facility improvements, public services, and economic development). 
 

Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 91.520(a)  
 
CV1 & CV3       2021 Entitlement  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 2 – Table of assistance to racial and ethnic populations by source of funds (HUD Report PR-23) 
*Note: These tables capture accomplishments for City of Appleton residents that were served for the 2021 program year, and includes 

funding sources: CDBG, CDBG-CV1, and CDBG-CV3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 5 

 

A map has been attached to this report (2021 CDBG LMI) that depicts the location of the 2021-funded 

activities. "Site" represents locations where these projects originate, while "Activity" represents locations 

where CDBG-funded projects occurred (i.e. housing rehabilitation). LMI Block Groups are outlined and Blocks 

are shaded according to minority percentages.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              Map 1- 2021 CDBG LMI 

 

 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 6 

 

A map has been attached to this report (2021 CDBG-CV LMI) that depicts the location of the 2021 CV-

funded activities. "Site" represents locations where these projects originate, while "Activity" represents 

locations where CDBG-funded projects occurred (i.e. housing rehabilitation). LMI Block Groups are 

outlined and Blocks are shaded according to minority percentages. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

      Map 2- 2021 CDBG-CV LMI 

 

 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 7 

 

 

Source of Funds Source 

Resources 

Made Available 

Amount Expended 

During Program Year 

CDBG  Public- federal $972,345.65 $868,753.76 

CDBG-CV Public- federal $691,523.00 $378,710.99 

 $1,663,868.65 $1,247,464.75 

Table 3 – Resources Made Available (HUD Report PR-26, as of March 14, 2022) 

 

All of the 2021 program year subrecipients utilized several other funding resources for the successful 
implementation of their programs and activities. The City of Appleton gives preference to CDBG applicants who 
can demonstrate well-established budgets utilizing various funding sources. 
 

The resources directly reflected in this report include: CDBG grant subawards and program income generated 
from the Appleton Housing Authority and the City of Appleton's Homeowner Rehabilitation Loan Program 
(HRLP).  

 

Leveraging 

Explain how federal funds leveraged additional resources (private, state and local funds), including 
a description of how matching requirements were satisfied, as well as how any publicly owned land 
or property located within the jurisdiction that were used to address the needs identified in the 
plan. 
While the City of Appleton does not implement a match requirement associated with CDBG funding, no activity 
or program operated solely with CDBG funding. Many of the 2021 CDBG subrecipients and CDBG-CV 
subrecipients utilized several other funding resources for the successful implementation of their programs. 

 

Subrecipient Type of Resource Type of Funds 

Total 

Amount of 

Resource 

Appleton Housing Authority 

(Total Leverage = $25,845) 

State of WI- HOME Grant for down payment & rehab $25,845.00 

*Apricity, Inc  

(DBA The Mooring Programs) 

(Total Leverage = $32,900) 

Private Funds Agency general fund $5,180.00 

Government Grants $860.00 

Private Funds Grants/Donations $26,860.00 

City of Appleton- 

Motel Voucher Program 

(Total Leverage = $27,453) 

Other Federal Funds Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) 

 

$27,453.00 

Fox Valley Lutheran Homes 

(Total Leverage = $650) 

In-Kind  

 

Volunteer Support 

 

$400.00 

Private Donations $250.00 

RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS (CR-15)



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 8 

 

Habitat for Humanity 

(Total Leverage = $326,841) 

State of WI- SHOP Grant $167,244.00 

In-Kind Materials & Labor $30,549.00 

Private Grant $129,048.00 

Homeowner Rehabilitation 

Loan Program 

(Total Leverage = $472,314) 

CDBG Program 

Income 

Grant $336,603.00 

State of WI- HOME 

Program Income 

Grant $103,736.00 

Lead Hazard Control 

Program Income 

Grant $31,975.00 

*LEAVEN 

(Total Leverage = $2,216,872) 

Local Churches/Businesses/Corporations $143,814.00 

Private Grants/Foundations/Organizations $515,272.00 

Private Donations $323,827.00 

Government Grants $1,233,959.00 

*Pillars 

(Total Leverage = $77,296.50) 

 

Private Grants/Loans/Donations $77,296.50 

Rebuilding Together Fox 

Valley 

(Total Leverage = $433,495.52) 

Private Grants/Foundations/Businesses $235,573.33 

Private Donations $146,464.19 

Fundraising Donations $51,458.00 

Salvation Army of the Fox 

Cities 

(Total Leverage = $77,891) 

Private Donations/Appeals $77,891.00 

*WWBIC 

(Total Leverage = $1,889,032) 

Federal Office of Women’s Business $150,000.00 

Local Grants $59,032.00 

Federal  Grants $1,680,000.00 

Table 4- Leveraging 
*Indicates funding from both Entitlement and CV grants 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 9 

 

 

 

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, 
including the number and types of families served, the number of extremely 
low-income, low-income, moderate-income, and middle-income persons 
served. 

One-
Year 
Goal Actual 

Number of Homeless households to be provided affordable housing units 0 0 

Number of Non-Homeless households to be provided affordable housing units 41 44 

Number of Special-Needs households to be provided affordable housing units 0 0 

Total 41 44 

Table 4- Number of Households 

 

 One-
Year 
Goal 

Actual 

Number of households supported through Rental Assistance 158 247 

Number of households supported through The Production of New Units 0 0 

Number of households supported through Rehab of Existing Units 41 44 

Number of households supported through Acquisition of Existing Units 0 0 

Total 196 291 

Table 5 - Number of Households Supported 

 
Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting these 
goals. 
Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans. 
Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons served by 
each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine the eligibility of 
the activity. 
 

Number  of Persons Served CDBG Actual CDBG-CV Actual 
Extremely Low-income 1,158 675 

Low-income 137 74 

Moderate-income 36 43 

Total 1,331 792 

Table 6 – Number of Persons Served 
*Note: This table captures accomplishments only for City of Appleton residents that were served for the 2021 program year, and 

includes funding sources: CDBG, CDBG-CV1, and CDBG-CV3. 

All of the City of Appleton's CDBG-funded activities for the 2021 program year, with the exception of the 
administrative activities, benefited low- to moderate-income persons and households.  
 

 
 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING (CR-20)



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 10 

 

 

Evaluate the jurisdiction’s progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending 
homelessness through: 
 
Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual 
needs 

 
Pillars Inc. employs a Street Outreach Team that connects with individuals who are unsheltered 
or staying in a place not meant for human habitation. The Street Outreach workers- while not 
financially supported through CDBG funding- connect with people and build rapport to ultimately 
offer mainstream resources. 
 
ADVOCAP, Inc implemented a Street Outreach role within their table of organization. The Street 
Outreach worker provided street outreach, case management, and referral services to people 
living in unsheltered locations, such as cars, parks, abandoned buildings, and on the streets. The 
Street Outreach Case Manager reached people who might not otherwise seek assistance or come 
to the attention of the homelessness service system, and ensured that people’s basic needs were 
met while supporting them along pathways toward housing stability. The Street Outreach Case 
Manager worked with several City of Appleton departments, including but not limited to 
Community and Economic Development, Health Department, Public Works, the Police 
Department, and the Library as well as referrals from local community partners, including but not 
limited to the Fox Cities Housing Coalition members.  
 
As a resource to the Advocap Street Outreach worker, the City of Appleton deployed a Motel 
Voucher Program. This program ensured that individuals and families experiencing homelessness 
had a safe, temporary place to stay, until a more permanent housing solution was identified. The 
City of Appleton, and partnering agencies, issued motel vouchers only as a last resort on a case-
by-case basis, when all shelters had been filled to capacity or there was a verified extenuating 
circumstance that prevented an individual or family from staying in a shelter. These partners 
included the Appleton Area School District, the Appleton Police Department, Advocap, and the 
Boys & Girls Club of the Fox Valley. 
 
LEAVEN, Inc. utilizes an intake process that identifies people experiencing homelessness and 
assesses their situation to determine the best course of action. Depending on their ability to 
maintain housing, they are referred to a local/regional shelter or are assisted with securing 
permanent, affordable housing. Occasionally, and under extenuating circumstances, LEAVEN will 
assist with a short-term motel stay to get the households off of the streets. 
 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 
The City of Appleton continued as the fiscal administrator for the Fox Cities Continuum of Care Rapid Re-Housing 
programs and the State of Wisconsin Emergency Homeless and Housing programs, serving as the lead agency 
and administering funds to Pillars Inc, Salvation Army of the Fox Cities, Harbor House, and ADVOCAP. Three of 
the four agencies also received either 2021 CDBG Entitlement funding or CDBG-CV funding, in an effort to 
maintain housing units and programs addressing the needs of individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness in the Appleton community. 
 

LEAVEN collaborated closely with staff from local shelters and transitional programs to address 
the needs of people experiencing homelessness. COTS and Christine Ann Domestic Abuse Services 

HOMELESS & OTHER SPECIAL NEEDS (CR-25)



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 11 

 

offer part-time, onsite services in the LEAVEN Community Resource Center, and proposals to 
expand and offer a satellite office near-downtown Appleton are being considered. In addition to 
efforts to connect clients to programs and services externally, LEAVEN receives referrals and 
coordinates efforts to secure housing or provide financial assistance for a motel stay to 
households experiencing homelessness.  
 
The City of Appleton’s Motel Voucher Program ensured that individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness had a safe, temporary place to stay, until a more permanent housing 
solution was identified. The City of Appleton issued motel vouchers when all other shelter options 
had been exhausted. 

 
Pillars Inc operated two emergency shelters and a resource center, providing temporary shelter 
to both households with and without children. The Adult and Family Shelter served as a 24-hour 
shelter for households with and without children who were experiencing literal homelessness. 
The Adult Shelter served as a nighttime shelter only for households without children. Both 
shelters provided case management, access to supportive housing, and referrals to mainstream 
and specialized resources based on client need. Additionally, Pillars offered supportive housing 
programming to households experiencing homelessness, including households with children, 
household without children, survivors of domestic violence, veterans, and chronic homelessness.  
 
ADVOCAP, Inc. implemented a Street Outreach role within their table of organization. The Street 
Outreach worker provided street outreach, case management, and referral services to people 
living in unsheltered locations, such as cars, parks, abandoned buildings, and on the streets. The 
Street Outreach Case Manager reached people who might not otherwise seek assistance or come 
to the attention of the homelessness service system, and ensured that people’s basic needs were 
met while supporting them along pathways toward housing stability.  
 

Salvation Army of the Fox Cities’ Housing Retention Program offered up to 18 months of 
financial support and case management for families who were at-risk of becoming homeless. 
The assistance and case management allowed households to maintain their current housing 
while stabilizing their situation and preventing homelessness. 
 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-
income individuals and families and those who are:  likely to become homeless after being 
discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, 
mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and 
institutions);  and,  receiving assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, 
social services, employment, education, or youth needs 
While all 2021PY CDBG subrecipients focused their programs and efforts on serving low- and moderate-income 
families and individuals, several community agencies focused on preventing families and individuals from 
experiencing homelessness. 
 

LEAVEN’s financial assistance helped maintain and secure housing, thereby preventing 
homelessness in most instances. LEAVEN’s resource coordination connected clients to programs 
and services that addressed both short and long-term barriers to housing and economic stability. 
Although the Community Resource Center was closed for half of 2021, resource coordination was 
still conducted virtually, allowing partners to monitor, track and complete referrals. 
 
Salvation Army of the Fox Cities’ Housing Retention Program offered up to 18 months of financial 
support and case management to families who are at-risk of becoming homeless. This assistance 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 12 

 

and case management allowed households to maintain their current housing while stabilizing 
their situation and preventing homelessness. 
 
The Prevention and Diversion Program at Pillars, Inc. is a case management program that offered 
security deposits and rental assistance on a short-term basis for households imminently at risk of 
becoming homeless throughout the 2021 program year. The program provided coaching, 
advocacy, support, and connection with clients as a means to further their journey toward healthy 
interdependence. By following a strengths-based, client- centered approach, Pillars was able to 
prevent these households from becoming homeless and entering a shelter. 
 
Prior to discharge from residential treatment services, Apricity (Mooring) planned for individuals 
leaving treatment who might be homeless to secure housing. This included referral and facilitation 
to secure housing with other Apricity programming or other housing organizations throughout 
the state. Specifically, one primary option was Apricity’s Single Living Program- which is a 
transitional therapeutic community living arrangement that provided extended recovery support.  
 
Rebuilding Together Fox Valley played an important role in preventing homelessness by assisting 
low-income homeowners in addressing critical home modifications and repairs that impacted the 
health of safety of occupancy. To qualify to receive services from Rebuilding Together, 
homeowners must have a household income that is below 80 percent of the county median 
income, and do not qualify for other community assistance organizations. When forced to make 
decisions between providing necessities to the household- such as food, healthcare, etc- and 
repairing their home, hmeowners defer the necessary home maintenance just to survive another 
month. The condition of the home continues to deteriorate month after month, until the home 
becomes a health and/or safety hazard.  

 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 
children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent 
housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families 
experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable 
housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming 
homeless again 
The City of Appleton collaborated with several CDBG subrecipient organizations through the Fox Cities Housing 
Coalition, ensuring that a continuum of care strategy was implemented and executed appropriately in the 
community. Reports and local data indicated that individuals and families experiencing chronic homelessness in 
the Appleton community continues to be a concern. As a result, the City of Appleton worked closely with 
partners- including Pillars, Salvation Army, Habitat for Humanity, Rebuilding Together Fox Valley, LEAVEN, and 
ADVOCAP- to incorporate additional permanent supportive housing options into the community, which included 
successfully retaining additional federal funding to this cause. 
 

LEAVEN's High-Risk Prevention Program addressed the needs of individuals imminently at-risk of 
homelessness because of the magnitude of their crisis or their chronic inability to meet their own 
basic needs. Case plans were written, goals were established, and expectations were set to 
promote self-sufficiency and prevent future episodes of homelessness. LEAVEN often partnered 
with other agencies, such as Fox Valley Veterans Council, Pillars, St. Vincent de Paul, Neenah-
Menasha Emergency Society, Appleton Alliance Church, and other local churches to assist at 
higher levels to reduce a household’s length of homelessness if not entirely. 

 
Pillars Adult Shelter case manager was specifically hired in 2021 to help transition identified 
homeless persons to permanent housing and independent living. This role helped clients develop 
goals while also assisting them through navigation of systems and agencies. The case manager 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 13 

 

helped clients stay focused and ensure their episode of homelessness was brief and did not 
reoccur.  

 

 
Actions taken to address the needs of public housing 
While the City of Appleton worked closely with the Appleton Housing Authority to address issues related to 
affordable housing, no portion of the 2021 CDBG funds were directly used to create or address needs of their 
public housing stock. 
 

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 
participate in homeownership 
The Appleton Housing Authority’s Homebuyer Program markets to other AHA programs, including the Family 
Self-Sufficiency and Public Housing Family programs. All of the 2021 Family Self-Sufficiency Program graduates 
had some contact with the Homebuyer Program for the purchse or future purchase of a home. The Homebuyer 
Program Manager worked with the Family Self-Sufficiency Program Support Specialist to provide pre-purchase 
goal planning for program participants.  
 
The Greater Fox Cities Habitat for Humanity worked closely with the local housing authorities to encourage 
residents to prepare for the next step into homeownership. The case managers from the Appleton Housing 
Authority and the Outagamie County Housing Authority communicated regularly with Habitat to assist 
households to their next steps in the housing journey. 
 

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs 
The Appleton Housing Authority was not designated as a trouble housing authority.

 

Actions taken to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers 
to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, 
building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential 
investment. 91.220 (j); 91.320 (i) 
The City of Appleton worked closely with developers and homeowners that encountered barriers to affordable 
housing and guided them through any administrative channels they could utilize to overcome those barriers.  
 
The Homeownership Rehabilitation Loan Program helped property owners maintain their homes so that they 
could continue to live in the home most affordable to them. Many of the homeowners had satisfied their 
mortgage, or have a low mortgage payment. With increased rents and an extremely competitive housing 
market, for most, homeownership is a better option for long-term affordability. 
 
The homeowner down payment assistance administered by the Appleton Housing Authority made mortgage 
payments affordable for first-time homebuyers, and sometimes the funds provided supplemented a 
homeowner's down payment enough to avoid paying private mortgage insurance (PMI). Many times, affordable 
houses purchased were in significant need of rehabilitation and without the Housing Authority's rehabilitation 
assistance, upgrades would not have been affordable. 
 
 

PUBLIC HOUSING (CR-30)

OTHER ACTIONS (CR-35)



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 14 

 

Habitat for Humanity is an equal housing opportunity program that reaches out to people of all populations. 
They provided families [that met guidelines] with the opportunity to own their own homes or rent at 
affordable rates. Habitat’s marketing efforts encompass a wide spectrum of outreach to people who have 
faced barriers to housing. 
 

Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs.  91.220(k); 91.320(j) 
Pillars maintained more than 116 affordable housing units in their housing portfolio, and oftentimes included 
significant supportive services as a condition of the rental lease agreement. Of the total units, Pillars 
designated twenty units to serve individuals with special needs; 12 units to serve young adults suffering with 
mental health issues; six units to serve chronically homeless households; and several SRO properties primarily 
served clients who are currently homeless. 
 
Rebuilding Together Fox Valley helped eliminate barriers to affordable housing by addressing critical home 
modifications and repair needs before te home became a health and safety hazard. By addressing issues early, 
RTFV helped preserve the stock of affordable housing available to low-income homeowners and homebuyers. 
 
ADVOCAP, Inc. implemented a Street Outreach role as a means of identifying underserved needs in the 
community. This role is designed to identify and engage with households living in unsheltered locations, such as 
cars, parks, abandoned buildings, and on the streets, and determine how to connect them to community 
resources as they continue their journey to housing stability. One of those community resources, the City of 
Appleton’s Motel Voucher Program, was available for households who’s underserved needs include shelter 
access. Because a motel voucher is only administered when all other shelter options have been exhausted, this 
program truly ensures that engaged households have a safe place to stay until more stable housing is achievable.  
 

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 
In all instances of affordable housing rehabilitation projects- including the Appleton Housing Authority,  
Rebuilding Together Fox Valley, Habitat for Humanity, and the City of Appleton's Homeowner Rehabilitation 
Loan Program- the units were inspected under multiple assessments, including lead risk. If lead hazards did 
exist, the organization was required to address the hazards as part of the rehabilitation, and at project 
completion, conduct clearance tests to ensure that the unit was lead safe.  
 
The Appleton Housing Authority Homebuyer Program Manager holds a certificate for Housing Quality 
Standards (HQS) inspections and is a lead hazard investigator through the State of Wisconsin Department of 
Health Services. Prior to purchase, all homes received an HQS inspection, during which lead hazards were 
identified, if any. If lead hazards were identified, remediation was included in the rehabilitation component of 
the program. Eighty percent of the households that were assisted with AHA homeowner rehabilitation during 
the 2020PY required remediation of lead hazards.  
 
The Greater Fox Cities Habitat for Humanity fosters a strong relationship with the Wisconsin Department of 
Health Services, and through the Lead Safe Homes Program completed full remediation work on all properties 
acquired and rehabilitated, ensuring the long-term safety and sustainability of the homes. 
 
LEAVEN required that for any direct assistance payments extending beyond 100 days were subject to the Lead 
Safe Housing Rule and required a visual lead-based paint inspection. Additionally, all households that received 
assistance through LEAVEN were provided the “Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home” pamphlet.  
 

Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 
By teaching teens to work in teams, develop a work ethic, and improve their engagement with others, the 
Summer of Services program offered through the Appleton Police Department provided students at-risk of not 
graduating from high school an opportunity to stay on track or get back on track. Failing to graduate high school 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 15 

 

increases an individual's risk of living in poverty, substance abuse and addiction, and reduces future employment 
prospects. 
 
The Appleton Housing Authority and Habitat for Humanity each provided mechanisms for breaking the cycle 
of poverty through their affordable homeownership programs. Obtaining a mortgage and affordable home for 
many low- to moderate-income families provides some stability with a lower cost of living and community 
investment. Additionally, Habitat offered supportive services to all families including job coaching, budget 
counseling, and provided access to education. 
 
LEAVEN's Community Resource Center was specifically created to help clients transition from crisis 
management to self-sufficiency, and reduce the number of poverty-level families in the Appleton community. 
The Center incorporates an innovative service delivery model, ensuring the ability to address client challenges 
in a more comprehensive and systemic way. LEAVEN’s community partners share the belief that together, a 
greater social change can be created than would be possible by an individual organization working alone. The 
Center’s integrated support system provided a more holistic approach, inspiring people to improve their lives, 
realize their potential, and envision a better future for themselves and their families. 
 
The safe, decent and affordable housing provided by Pillars helped households in poverty create a more stable 
life, and gain access to resources such as education, budgeting, employment and health and wellness. Clients 
were encouraged to collaborate with program case managers to generate goals and work plans toward 
achieving self sufficiency. 
 
The Mooring Program’s first step to move clients with substance use disorders out of poverty is to provide a 
foundation for recovery. By addressing clients’ substance use disorders, staff helped them understand and 
recognize triggers that often led to the use of substances. Staff also taught clients to utilize tools learned in 
treatment to combat these triggers. In addition to providing high quality treatment, Apricity provided a 
continuum of care for clients with opportunities to secure transitional employment.  
 
Rebuilding Together Fox Valley alleviated the expenses of home repairs for nine households by providing 
services at no cost to the homeowner. This allowed the household to redirect their money to other essential 
needs. 
 

Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 
Public institutions, non-profit organizations, and private companies comprise the institutional structure that 
supports the City of Appleton's community development activities, specifically as they relate to CDBG. The City 
of Appleton, as the major public sector component, served as the lead fiscal and administrative agent for all 
community development grant programs, including the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, 
Continuum of Care/Permanent Supportive Housing program (COC PSH), and the Emergency Housing and 
Homeless program (EHH). The Community and Economic Development and Finance Departments worked 
together to administer these grants.  
 
Through an active membership of the Fox Cities Housing Coalition- which is comprised of nonprofit and 
supportive service agencies in the community- the City of Appleton continued to encourage open lines of 
communication and discussion regarding community development needs in the area. Nearly all subrecipients 
funded during the 2020PY are active members of the Fox Cities Housing Coalition, which helps to coordinate 
and maintain the institutional structure of the community's continuum of care. 
 

Actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service 
agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j) 
The Fox Cities Housing Coalition continued to coordinate efforts between public and private housing providers 
and social service agencies. Each member agency in the Coalition worked to ensure that all individuals- whether 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 16 

 

homeless, imminently at-risk of homelessness, or in need of affordable housing, or services- were provided the 
shelter and support necessary. This network ensures efficiency and effectiveness among the programs offered 
in the community, and makes every effort to eliminate duplication or redudancy.   
 
Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the jurisdictions analysis of 
impediments to fair housing choice.  91.520(a) 
The following impediments to fair housing were identified through the Metropolitan Milwaukee Fair Housing 
Council's research and interviews in 2019. 

Table 7—City of Appleton: Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 2019 

The City of Appleton contracted with the Metropolitan Milwaukee Fair Housing Council’s satellite office, 
the Fair Housing Center of Northeast Wisconsin (FHCNW) to conduct various fair housing program 
activities during the 2021-2022 contract year. These activities included: 
 
Fair housing complaint intake, case management, and investigative services. FHCNW conducted intake 
of fair housing complaints from a total of 11 individuals in the City of Appleton. All complainants were 
provided with technical assistance as to their rights under federal, state, and local fair housing laws. 
FHCNW provides investigative services on a case-by-case basis in response to complaints, as well as 
additional case management services to complainants and formal referrals to administratie enforcement 
agencies when warranted. 
 
Information and referral services. FHCNW provided informational and referral services to individuals with 
non-fair housing inquiries, including but not limited to topics such as tenant rights, subsidized housing, 
lease-related questions, repair concerns and evictions. 
 
Technical assistance. One individual was provided technical assistance regarding the nature of modern 
housing discrimination and racial disparities in housing. 

2019 Analysis of Impediments 

Impediment 1: Private-market housing discrimination Housing discrimination 

complaint data verifies that 

discrimination is occurring 

based on many different 

protected classes 

Impediment 2: Affordable housing location The location of affordable 

housing can contribute to 

segregation or integration, as 

well as to the access a person 

has to opportunities such as 

education and employment 

Impediment 3: Lack of affordable, accessible housing  

Impediment 4:  Private market refusal to permit 

accommodations/modifications 

 

Impediment 5:  Lending discrimination and disparities Persons of color received a 

disproportionately low share of 

loan originations 

Impediment 6:  Critical shortage of affordable rental housing and 

limited housing assistance 

 



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 17 

 

Fair housing presentations. FHCNW conducted four fair housing presentations in the City of Appleton, 
covering topics such as the protected classes and prohibited practices under federal, state, and local fair 
housing laws, contemporary forms of housing discrimination, and remedies to individuals who may have 
experienced illegal discrimination. 
 
Fair housing training. A fair housing training seminar for owners and managers of rental property in the 
City of Appleton was hosted virtually on March 24, 2022. 
 
Interagency meetings. FHCNW consistently participated in the local Fox Cities Housing Coalition, as well 
as the Appleton-based Multicultural Communications Committee. During these meetings, staff takes the 
opportunity to recruit volunteers, disseminate fair housing information, learn about housing  trends and 
concerns observed by other professionals in the area, a//nd build relationships with other organizations. 
 
Distribution of fair housing materials. Throughout the grant year, FHCNW distributed fair housing 
education materials that describe the protected classes and prohibited practices. A total of 592 fair 
housing information materials were disbursed between 20 organizations and agencies.  
 

Describe the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the 
plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, 
including minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning requirements 
Ensuring that CDBG funds are utilized efficiently and effectively is continuous throughout each program year. 
The procedures associated with monitoring activities and assuring that the activities are meeting objectives and 
goals set forth in the 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan are initiated during the annual application process. 
 
In 2021, applications were received and reviewed  for eligibility by staff in the City of Appleton's Community and 
Economic Development Department. An Advisory Board, comprised of City Council members, City Committee 
members, and community agency members with experience in grant awarding were responsible for identifying 
which eligible activities proposed met the greatest need in the community. Recommendations by the Advisory 
Board were then approved by the City of Appleton's Community and Economic Development Committee, and 
then the City Council. 
 
The "return on investment" was highly scrutinized throughout the entire allocation process. Meeting high 
priority needs and objectives, as identified in the 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan, was emphasized to both 
applicants and reviewers, magnifying the importance the City of Appleton places on community-identified needs 
and priorities. 
 
Risk assessments were completed shortly after preliminary allocation, and projects requiring additional 
oversight and technical assistance were identified. Monitoring visits were conducted early in the program year 
[on projects determined to be of higher risk early] in the program year to ensure agencies were able to remain 
compliant and meet expectations. 
 
Throughout the 2021 CDBG program year, awarded subrecipients submitted accomplishment reports and 
payment requests documenting the progress made by their activities. These reports and requests were used by 
City of Appleton staff to track activity accomplishments, expenditure accuracy, and record keeping. Sufficient 
documentation, reasonable expenses, and qualifying activities were evaluated. Failure to submit, or identified 
discrepancies in any of these areas, also triggered additional technical assistance and/or monitoring. 

MONITORING (CR-40)



 2021PY CDBG CAPER 18 

 

 

Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d) 
 

Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on 
performance reports. 
Citizens were provided with two separate opportunities for public comment: a 30-day public comment period 
and a public hearing at a regularly-scheduled meeting of the City of Appleton's Community and Economic 
Development Committee. The public comment period was open May 2, 2022, through May 31, 2022, and the 
public hearing was held during the June 8, 2022, Community and Economic Development Committee meeting. 
Comments and views of citizens were taken into consideration and included within the CAPER, as appropriate.  
 

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction’s program objectives and 
indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its experiences. 
There were no changes in program objectives during the 2021 program year, and the City of Appleton does not 
anticipate making any changes to the programming. 
 

Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) grants? 
No 

The City of Appleton did not receive any HOME/ADDI funds during the 2021 program year. 

The City of Appleton did not receive any HOPWA funds during the 2021 program year. 
 
 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN (CR-45)

HOPWA

HOME/ADDI



 
 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 
 

TO:  Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 
 

FROM: Chris Stempa, Utilities Deputy Director 
 

DATE: May 23, 2022  
 

RE: Award: 2022 AWWTP Preliminary Heat Exchanger and Blended 

Sludge Piping Replacement Project Engineering Services Amendment 

#1 increasing the McMahon total contract amount by $3,800 from 

$26,300 to $30,100 and increase contingency from $2,630 to $4,000 for a 

Project Total not to exceed $34,100   
 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) Preliminary Heat Exchanger and 

Blended Sludge Piping Replacement Project engineering service contract was awarded to 

McMahon by Common Council on February 16, 2022. The project scope originally 

included the Preliminary Heat Exchanger (HEX) replacement and Blended Sludge pipe 

replacement in M-K Tunnel. It also included the installation of an access ladder, fall 

support, and recladding of the Raw Sludge Blend Tank. 

 

Contract Amendment #1 would include preliminary design, bidding, and construction 

management services associated with the replacement of the Grit Vortex System drive 

mechanisms. There was $292,500 allocated in the 2022 budget as part of the Grit Trap 

Vortex System Drive Replacement CIP. The recommendation for advancing this contract 

amendment is to take advantage of parallel engineering activities within McMahon’s 

existing contract. It provides an opportunity to receive greater value through economy of 

scale engineering services and public bid construction.   

 

SUMMARY 
 

The cost of additional engineering services outlined as part of the McMahon Contract 

Amendment #1 totals $3,800.  This amendment would result in the contract amount 

increasing from $26,300 to $30,100.  I also request that the amount of contingency be 

increased from $2,630 to $4,000 to account for unknowns encountered during 

construction.  If approved, the revised not to exceed contract amount would be $34,100.  

If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Chris Stempa at ph: 832-

5945. 



Department of Public Works – Engineering Division 
    

MEMO 
 

 
TO:  Utilities Committee 

 
FROM: Paula Vandehey, Director of Public Works 
  Pete Neuberger, Staff Engineer 
  Sue Olson, Staff Engineer 
 
DATE:  May 26, 2022 
 
RE: Amend 2022A Stormwater Management Plan Review contract with Brown and Caldwell by an 

increase of $20,000 for a total contact amount not to exceed $67,500.   
_______________________________________________________________________________  
 
The Department of Public Works is requesting an amendment to the contract with Brown and Caldwell (BC) for 
2022 Stormwater Management Plan Reviews by an increase of $20,000 for a total contact amount not to exceed 
$67,500.  After this contract amendment, $ 331,500 will remain in the 2022 stormwater consulting 
budget. 
 
Due to the number of stormwater management plans submitted in 2022, the number of plans expected to be 
submitted yet this summer and the coordination needed for larger projects, the original contact amount of 
$47,500 is anticipated to be expended soon.  Also, due to the staff change at the Erosion Control Inspector 
position, BC is also assisting the City with reviewing erosion control plans on larger sites that have additional 
WDNR requirements.     
 
Work under this contract is charged on an hourly basis and is therefore only used as needed.  In order to keep 
projects moving forward, staff is requesting this amendment now, before the current contract is completely 
spent.    
 
 

































































43-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 23 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 
OF APPLETON AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP WHICH IS A PART THEREOF, BY 
MAKING THE FOLLOWING CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT AS NOW PROVIDED. 

(City Plan Commission 6-15-2022) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1: That Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton and the Official Zoning Map, which is a part thereof, is amended by making the following 

changes: 

To rezone lands located on North French Road, bordered by East Glory Lane, North 
Providence Avenue and East Ashbury Drive (Parcel #31-1-7400-00), including the 
adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way, from R-1A Single-Family District to P-I Public 
Institutional District. (Rezoning #3-22 – Apostolic Truth Church – North French 
Road) 
 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
SEC7 T21N R18E PRT N1/2 SE NE COM E1/4 COR SEC 7 N1306.42FT 
W48.98FT TO POB TH W670.84FT S648.44FT E674.75FT N645.19FT TO POB 
AND LOT 1 OF CSM 2720 LE SS DOC 1676937 & LESS DOC 1680547, 
INCLUDING THE ADJACENT ONE HALF (½) RIGHT OF WAY, CITY OF 
APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 
 
 
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 
 
Parcel located on North French Road, bordered by East Glory Lane, North 
Providence Avenue and East Ashbury Drive (Tax Id #31-1-7400-00) and the 
adjacent one-half right-of-way 
 
 
Section 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication the Director of Community and Economic 

Development is authorized and directed to make the necessary changes to the Official Zoning Map 

in accordance with this Ordinance. 



 
44-22 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE  
CITY OF APPLETON. 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1:  The Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map for the following 

area of the city be amended as follows: 

 
#2-22:  For land located on North French Road, bordered by East Glory Lane, North 
Providence Avenue and East Ashbury Drive, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, 
Wisconsin (Parcel #31-1-7400-00) from future One- and Two-Family Residential 
land use and Multi-Family land use to future Public Institutional land use. 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
SEC7 T21N R18E PRT N1/2 SE NE COM E1/4 COR SEC 7 N1306.42FT 
W48.98FT TO POB TH W670.84FT S648.44FT E674.75FT N645.19FT TO POB 
AND LOT 1 OF CSM 2720 LE SS DOC 1676937 & LESS DOC 1680547, 
INCLUDING THE ADJACENT ONE HALF (½) RIGHT OF WAY, CITY OF 
APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 
Section 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 6-1-22
	0002_1_Appointments Memo 6'15'2022
	0003_1_Alder Committee Replacement Memo
	0004_1_City Assessor Recommendation to Council Memo
	0005_1_Make Music Day Proclamation
	0005_2_Dump the Pump Day Proclamation
	0007_1_Public Hearing Notice Comp Plan Amend 2-22
	0008_1_RZ 3_22 Notice of Public Hearing
	RE: Proposed Zone Change

	0009_1_Anticipated award for Unit Q-22 Pavement Marking Contract
	0010_1_Parking change on S. Driscoll St
	0011_1_Parking change on Pacific St.
	0011_2_Emails -Pacific St-Drew St to Lawe St
	0012_1_A-22 Appleton Street Project
	0013_1_Dairyland Brew Pub LLC
	0014_1_Northland Mobil
	0015_1_Richmond Mobil
	0016_1_Wisconsin Avenue Pantry
	0017_1_Richmond St Citgo
	0018_1_Mach IV Motors SL
	0019_1_Brittany M Bell SL
	0020_1_Additional Amusement Device renewals 2022-23
	0021_1_Additional Cigarette renewals 2022-23
	0022_1_2022-23 Alcohol License Renewals-4th set
	0023_1_StaffReport_ApostolicChurch_CompPlan+Rezoning_For05-11-22
	0023_2_Paula Meyer Email
	0023_3_Neighborhood Brochure From Apostolic Truth Church
	0024_1_StaffReport_ApostolicChurch_CompPlan+Rezoning_For05-11-22
	0024_2_Paula Meyer Email
	0024_3_Neighborhood Brochure From Apostolic Truth Church
	0025_1_StaffReport_Peak Car Wash_SUP_For06-08-22
	0026_1_River Valley One Offer to Purchase Memo to CEDC 6-8-22
	0026_2_Offer to Purchase
	0026_3_SPCP Deed Restrictions
	0026_4_Subject_Parcel_6_6_2022
	0027_1_Memo_Romenesko Waive Repurchase Request_NEBP 1-6510-18_6-8-22
	0027_2_Variance Request Email_Romenesko Development_3-2-22
	0027_3_Offer to Purchase Lot 18 NEBP_Joe Neilitz
	0027_4_Covenants and Restrictions_NEBP No. 2
	0027_5_Subject Parcel_1-6510-18
	0028_1_CAPER memo to CEDC 6-8-22
	0028_2_2021 CDBG CAPER Draft for Public Comment
	0029_1_Contract Amend 1_McMahon_2022 AWWTP Prelim HEX-Blended Sludge Piping
	0030_1_2022A SWM Plan Review BC Amendment Memo Util Cmte
	Department of Public Works – Engineering Division
	MEMO

	0031_1_2021 eCMAR Validated
	0032_1_Ordinances to Council 6-15-22
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION:




